
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 at 6:30 PM  

VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETING 

This meeting will be held via videoconference and the public is encouraged and welcome to participate.  

Public comment may be given during the videoconference by joining the meeting using the information 

below. Public comment for this meeting may also be submitted to the City Secretary at 

acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com no later than 4:00 PM on the day the meeting will be held. 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission respectfully requests that all microphones and webcams be disabled 

unless you are a member of the Commission. City staff, consultants and presenters, please enable your 

microphone and webcam when presenting to the Commission. 

Agenda 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86551216252?pwd=SEUrTU9zak9oQmFWSjRhdXpUT2dIZz09 

Meeting ID: 865 5121 6252 

Passcode: 327970 

Dial Toll Free: 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbYkV0ECdq 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/86551216252 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 

Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

John McIntosh 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

1

mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com


Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Senior Planner Amanda Padilla 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Planning Consultant Robyn Miga 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the October 27, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

2. Disapproval for the reasons set forth in the item application for a Preliminary Plat 

(SUB2020-0030), consisting of approximately 64.964 acres out of the Philip A. Smith 

Survey No. 26, Abstract No. 415, Hays County, Texas, generally located south of U.S. 

290, west of RR 12, and north of Hog Hollow Road, to be known as Caliterra Phase 4, 

Section 12. Applicant: Bill Couch, CBD, Inc.  

BUSINESS 

3. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2020-0008: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

2



from Agriculture District (AG) to Two Family Residential - Duplex District (SF-4) for 

an approximately .748 acre tract of land situated in BENJAMIN F. HANNA Survey. 

This property is located at 102 Rose Drive, Dripping Springs, TX (R15132). Applicant: 

Dave Merkel and Fred Van Cura 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Zoning Amendment 

4. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2020-0010: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

from Two Family Residential - Duplex District (SF-4) to General Retail District (GR) 

for an approximately 1 acre tract of land situated Phillip A. Smith Survey (Legal 

Description: A0415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY, ACRES 1.00). This property is 

generally located on Ranch Road 12 across from Summit Drive in Dripping Springs, TX. 

(R17873). Applicant: Jon Thompson 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Zoning Amendment 

5. Public Hearing and consideration regarding SUB2020-0026: an application to consider 

a Replat with a Vacation application for Howard Ranch Commercial for property 

generally located south of the intersection of Ranch Road 12 and FM 150 (Legal 

description: Howard Ranch Commercial, Lot 1, Acres 7.5.) Applicant: Bill Couch, 

Carlson Brigance and Doering, INC. 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Replat with Vacation 

6. Public hearing and consideration regarding SUB2020-0021: An application to consider 

a Replat with a Vacation for the Parten Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision for the property 

generally located 1.5 miles southwest of the intersection of Nutty Brown Road and FM 

1826 (R167464, R167463). The applicant is proposing to vacate an Open Space/ Drainage 

Lot and replat two (2) lots.  Applicant: HM Parten Ranch Development, INC. 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Replat with Vacation 

7. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding CUP2020-0009: an 

application to consider a conditional use permit to allow for an accessory dwelling unit 

at the property located at 101 Woods Loop, Driftwood, Texas 78620. Applicant: Jon 

Thompson 

3



a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Conditional Use Permit 

8. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding CUP2020-0010: an 

application to consider a conditional use permit to allow for an accessory dwelling unit 

at the property located at 693 Blue Ridge Drive, Dripping Springs, TX 78620. Applicant: 

Josh Haro, Haro Homes LLC. 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Conditional Use Permit 

9. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2020-0009: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

from Single-Family Residential District - Low Density (SF-1) to Local Retail District 

(LR) for an approximately .84 acre tract of land situated Phillip A. Smith Survey. This 

property is located at 519 Old Fitzhugh Road, Dripping Springs, TX. 

(R17916).  Applicant: Jon Thompson 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Zoning Amendment 

10. Presentation on the City's process and goals for the rewrite of the Zoning Ordinance. 

REPORTS OF STAFF AND AGENCIES 
No action to be taken. 

11. Planning Project Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning 

and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session 

in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
December 16, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

January 26, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

February 23, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

4



City Council Meetings 
December 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

December 15, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

January 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

Due to the Texas Governor Order, Hays County Order, City of Dripping Springs Disaster Declaration, 

and Center for Disease Control guidelines related to COVID-19, a quorum of this body could not be 

gathered in one place, and this meeting will be conducted through videoconferencing.  Texas Government 

Code Sections 551.045; 551.125; and 551.127. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on November 13, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

5



Planning & Zoning Commission  October 27, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85842339524?pwd=aDhXa1J6Y2RVM2lTaG85Yk0zTFptZz09 

Meeting ID: 858 4233 9524 

Passcode: 222242 

Dial Toll Free: 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kemKIZDvAw 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/85842339524 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members present were: 

Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Commission Member absent was: 
John McIntosh 

 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Attorney Laura Mueller 

Senior Planner Amanda Padilla 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Architectural Consultant Keenan Smith 

Mayor Bill Foulds, Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tem Taline Manassian 

Council Member April Harris-Allison 

 

 

6

Item 1.



Planning & Zoning Commission  October 27, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 Chair James led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

 

 Council Member April Harris-Allison spoke and introduced herself to the Commission. 

BUSINESS 

1. Approval of the September 22, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

 A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve the September 22, 2020 Planning & 

Zoning Commission regular meeting minutes.  Commissioner Bourguignon seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

2. Discuss and consider approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission 2021 annual 

meeting calendar. 

 Andrea Cunningham’s staff report is on file.  Staff recommends approval of the 2021 meeting 

calendar with no changes. 

 A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve the Planning & Zoning Commission 

2021 annual meeting calendar as recommended by staff.  Commissioner Williamson seconded 

the motion which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

3. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding the City of Dripping Springs 

Development Density.   

 Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file. 

Vice Chair Martin commented on the maps and would like to know both net and gross density 

when looking at developments.  

Chair James referred to the comprehensive plan and its favor of higher density in the core.  

Discussion of what the City core is and the use of mix of lot sizes occurred. 

7

Item 1.



Planning & Zoning Commission  October 27, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

Each commissioner member weighed in on the density issue in order to provide guidance 

to City Council:   

Vice Chair Martin is concerned about high density causing fire safety (Texas Heritage 

Village). He likes the idea of setting aside green space in perpetuity, and believes walkability 

is important near downtown; however, he is worried about consumers’ perceptions of a mix 

of lot sizes next to each other. Vice Chair Martin defines the City Core as East of HEB and 

heading West past Tractor Supply to Dripping Springs Middle School, and North on 12 to the 

Methodist Church and South almost to 150.  He added that some of the best places to put 

commercial is where we already have residential because they requested it first, and the City 

should look at where we can still have commercial in downtown or near downtown Dripping 

Springs.  

Commissioner Roger Newman is worried about maintenance on houses on smaller lots.  

Commissioner Christian Bourguignon agrees that discussing density the core is important.  

He is not worried about maintenance on houses on smaller lots, deterioration occurs in all 

sizes of lots.  He agrees with Vice Chair Martin definition of the core, and would the City to 

include something to encourage pedestrian traffic area and infill near downtown Dripping 

Springs - open spaces help with the traffic burden.   

Commissioner Evelyn Strong agrees it’s nice to have open space, but they become 

placeholders for future very valuable undeveloped real estate if they are not restricted.  The 

City should make sure the land is restricted if that is the City’s intent or save it for commercial 

or institutional uses, and defers to our expert planners. She sees Mercer Street and 12 as the 

core, and Arrowhead to Headwaters is the Core from east to west.   

Commissioner Tammie Williamson is still determining the core.  She likes different housing 

types within the same subdivision to ensure affordability, and the product in Big Sky Ranch 

but doesn’t know if the City should have this product throughout.  She also emphasized a 

mixture within a large subdivision is worthwhile.  

Chair James stated that Texas Heritage Village supplied a niche for affordable type housing.  

$310-350K is not affordable.   

Keenan Smith offered three density tools/considerations.  The Comprehensive Plan is the 

primary guidance, and the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances are the implementation 

regulations.  Keenan likes the conservation development option and values the open space for 

environmental purposes and outside activity, but has concerns that there is not affordable 

housing types for workers in Dripping Springs. He expressed that density is enabled by the 

availability of infrastructure and that development should emphasize the natural environment 

in Dripping Springs.  Keenan defines the Core as from Wallace Mountain to the Dripping 

Springs Middle School, and from 150 to Dripping Springs Ranch Park.  Keenan also spoke 

about Planned Growth Advisory Group.  

Chair James discussed the possibility of creating an advisory group and how that could 

contribute to the zoning and comprehensive plan updates.  

 

8

Item 1.



Planning & Zoning Commission  October 27, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

4. Discuss and consider recommendation for a Municipal Utility District Policy. 

 Laura Mueller presented MUD issues to the Commission.  Vice Chair James asked about debt 

and financing in relation to MUD and how improvements are treated after construction.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning 

and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session 

in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action.  

5. Consultation with City Attorney related to legal issues regarding Zoning Ordinance 

updates, Development Agreements, and density of development.  Consultation with City 

Attorney, 551.071 

6. Consultation with City Attorney related to legal issues regarding Municipal Utility 

Districts and a MUD Policy.  Consultation with City Attorney, 551.071 

The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
November 15, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

December 16, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
November 10, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

November 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

December 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

 A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Bourguignon 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

 This regular meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P& Z Meeting: November 18, 2020 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0030 – Caliterra Ph. 4, Section 12 

Project Planner: Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Caliterra Phase 4, Sec. 12 

Property Location:   South of U.S. 290, west of RR 12, and north of Hog Hollow Road (R17804) 

Legal Description:  Approximately 64.964 acres out of the Philip A. Smith Survey No. 26, Abstract No. 415, 

Hays County, Texas 

Applicant: Carlson, Brigace, and Doering, Inc. c/o Bill E. Couch 

Property Owner: Development Solutions CAT, LLC c/o Greg Rich   

Request: Preliminary Plat 

 

Property Location 

 

 
 

10

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval for the reasons set forth in the item application for a Preliminary Plat (SUB2020-0030), consisting of 

approximately 64.964 acres out of the Philip A. Smith Survey No. 26, Abstract No. 415, Hays County, Texas, generally 

located south of U.S. 290, west of RR 12, and north of Hog Hollow Road, to be known as Caliterra Phase 4, Section 12. 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located South of U.S. 290, west of RR 12, and north of Hog Hollow Road (R17804). 

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The property has varying topography, with about half of the site undevelopable because of a creek/floodplain located 

within the platted boundary.  

 

Zoning Designation:   
The property is located in the City’s ETJ.  

 

Property History  

The property is located in the city’s ETJ, however, it is subject to a development agreement that was approved by City 

Council January 14, 2014. This is the first time this plat applications has been considered.  

 

Outstanding Comments 

Staff analyzed the proposed plat (SUB2020-0030) against the city’s code of ordinances as well as associated agreements, 

and the following comments are outstanding: 

City of Dripping Springs, Section 4.7 Outstanding Comments 

1. Add signature block for surveyor/engineer, property owner, and for P & Z Chair;  

2. Remove all building lines;  

3. Show floodplain boundary;   

4. Label all filed subdivisions with recording information; and 

5. Update vicinity map to make more legible.  

City Engineering Outstanding Comments 

1. Impervious cover calculations in Engineering Report do not match the IC calculation table for Ph 4 Sec 

12. I believe the discrepancy is in the Street and sidewalk IC and the Total IC. Please review and confirm 

IC calculations  

2. The FEMA map provided in the Report is from Travis County and not relative to this project. Please 

update FEMA map in report.  

3. Please confirm that drainage calculations utilize Atlas 14 rainfall for Dripping Springs. Atlas 14 rainfall 

data for Dripping Springs can be found at the following link: 

https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_cont.html?bkmrk=ne 

4. Turn on Water Quality Buffer Zone (WQBZ) linework in Preliminary Plat.  

5. Address how the WQBZ were sized in the engineering report. Explain the upstream drainage basin size 

determined that led to the sizing of the WQBZ per [WQO 22.05.017]  

6. Provide a sidewalks plan. [Subdivision Ord. 15.2.2] 

7. Provide a Graphic Scale Bar per [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist] 

8. Provide a note naming who will be responsible for operation and maintenance of Stormwater Utilities and 

Ponds per [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist] 16. Provide Schematic Engineering Plans of 

11

Item 2.

https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_cont.html?bkmrk=ne


 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

the water and sewer lines to be constructed to serve this Preliminary Plat per [Preliminary Plat Info 

Requirements Checklist].  

9. Add the following note: “This Development is subject the Name of Development Agreement dated Month, 

Day, Year between the City of Dripping Springs and Developer recorded in Volume Document #, Public 

Records of Hays County, Texas.”  

10. Add the following note: Street Trees shall be planted in each lot prior to the issuance of a certificate of 

occupancy per the quantity, size and location requirements of [Sub Ord 28.06.051].  

11. Label Block I, Lot 37 as Open Space/Drainage Easement Lot.  

12. Label Block L, Lot 45 as Open Space/Drainage Easement Lot. 

13. Provide a table showing a direct comparison of existing vs proposed flow for the 2yr, 25yr and 100yr 

storm events at Analysis Points A, B & C [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist]. 

Robby Callegari, Utility Reviewer  

1. Show how water and wastewater lines on the plans before the first review can be done.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending denial of the request based on the reasons set forth in item, including all attachments.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat with staff comments (SUB2020-0030) 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend denial of the request.   

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

12

Item 2.



Δ

Δ

Δ

Δ

31

PRELIMINARY  PLAN
CALITERRA PHASE 4 SECTION 12 64

290

12

150

12

5183

C
A

L
IT

E
R

R
A

 P
H

A
S
E

 4
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

2

S
T

R
E

E
T

, 
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

, 
W

A
T

E
R

, 
&

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

BRP JSL

September 2020

SHEET
OF

JOB NUMBER

DATE

DESIGNED
BY:

DRAFTED
BY:

B
D

F
IR

M
 I

D
 #

F
3
7
9
1

C
ar

ls
o

n
, 
B

ri
ga

n
ce

 &
 D

o
er

in
g,

 I
n

c.

C
JO

B
 N

A
M

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
H

E
E

T
 N

A
M

E
:

M
ai

n
 O

ff
ic

e
5
5
0
1
 W

e
st

 W
il
li
am

 C
an

n
o

n
 D

r.
A

u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
4
9

P
h

o
n

e
 N

o
. 
(5

1
2
) 

2
8
0
-5

1
6
0

C
iv

il
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
  

  
  

  
  

  
S
u
rv

e
y
in

g

N
o

rt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

1
2
1
2
9
 R

R
 6

2
0
 N

.,
 S

te
. 
6
0
0

A
u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
5
0

w
w

w
.c

b
d

e
n

g
.c

o
m

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
 1

0
0
 S

C
A

L
E

13

Item 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE WATER LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE WATER LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,528 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,307 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,321 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,672 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,297 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,913 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,759 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,973 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,770 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,820 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,581 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,448 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,373 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,966 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,656 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,268 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,756 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,121 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,001 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,013 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,648 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,217 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,308 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
23,095 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,655 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,935 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,616 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,093 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,304 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,668 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,202 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,990 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,987 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,618 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,475 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,850 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,851 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,355 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,704 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,184 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,106 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,035 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
115,680 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,613,780 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALITERA PHASE 4 SECTION 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
203,830 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
163,674 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
203,830 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
144'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°03'14"E 155.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S65°16'37"E 710.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86°08'21"E 83.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°45'23"W 260.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S79°14'37"E 320.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°45'23"W 130.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=22.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=84°53'43"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB=S45°00'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CD=20.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=37.99' R=490.00' =4°26'33" CB=S85°13'44"W CD=37.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°32'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N79°14'37"W 19.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°33'18"W 115.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,613,780 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FULLY DEVELOPED FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMIER PARK LOOP (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE WATER LOOP (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISTY MEADOW (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,446 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=148'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=125'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=115'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=115'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=114'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=109'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=103'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=127'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S16°13'37"E 169.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N58°38'00"E 239.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1140

AutoCAD SHX Text
1130

AutoCAD SHX Text
1130

AutoCAD SHX Text
1120

AutoCAD SHX Text
1130

AutoCAD SHX Text
1140

AutoCAD SHX Text
1150

AutoCAD SHX Text
1150

AutoCAD SHX Text
1160

AutoCAD SHX Text
1160

AutoCAD SHX Text
1180

AutoCAD SHX Text
1170

AutoCAD SHX Text
1170

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°45'23"W 60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°39'15"E 232.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°00'01"W 1482.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°13'24"W 1459.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S06°59'33"E 60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°52'14"W 122.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
268'

AutoCAD SHX Text
412'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103'

AutoCAD SHX Text
290'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=165'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=143'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
146'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
236'

AutoCAD SHX Text
83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1078'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1380'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AAAAA

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=400'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=460'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.655 ACRES OPEN SPACE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.047 ACRES OPEN SPACE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.047 ACRES  OPEN SPACE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.757 ACRES DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN HILL LOOP  (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FISH TRAP ROAD (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMIER PARK LOOP (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N59°17'16"E 80.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N59°27'15"E 34.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N84°57'05"E 103.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=133.20' R=430.00' =17°44'28" CB=S88°07'05"E CD=132.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S79°14'37"E 24.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°05'25"W 976.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
north

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N.T.S.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTALS                                

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2,116'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: DEVELOPMENT SOLUTIONS CAT, LLC.  901 IDS CENTER  80 SOUTH 8TH STREET  MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA 55402 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER & SURVEYOR: CARLSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC. 5501 WEST WILLIAM CANNON DRIVE AUSTIN, TX 78749 PHONE: 512-280-5160 FAX: 512-280-5165

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL NO. OF LOTS: 47  NO. OF BLOCKS: 2 NO. OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS: 42 NO. OF OPEN SPACE LOTS: 3 NO. OF DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AND OPEN SPACES: 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ACREAGE:  64.964 ACRES FEMA MAP NO: 48209C-0115F,  48209C-0115F,  ,  DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2005

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 1OO YEAR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPED 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINEAR FOOTAGE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE WATER LOOP    (LOCAL STREET)  	60' R.O.W.   1,857'60' R.O.W.   1,857'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL DRIVE          (LOCAL STREET)  	60' R.O.W.    259'60' R.O.W.    259'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.558 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.358 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.916 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTLER RANCH RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE RIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST OAK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALITERRA PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG HOLLOW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPPING SPRINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ETJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
ETJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
ETJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
ETJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAM CENTERLINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX-XXXX-XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID# F3791

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

cynthia
Typewriter
09/08/2020

Blf Admin
Callout
Plat - Sec. 4, Subd. Ordinance. 

Blf Admin
Callout
Vicinity map should be legible. 4.7(a)

Blf Admin
Rectangle

Blf Admin
Callout
Is this filed? Include recording information.4.7(c)

Blf Admin
Text Box
Label subdivision, Caliterra Phase 2, Section 8, Instrument No. 18010022 - Section 4.7(c)

Blf Admin
Callout
Is this floodplain? 4.7(j) - label, if so.

Blf Admin
Text Box
SUB2020-0030



PRELIMINARY  PLAN

CALITERRA PHASE 4 SECTION 12

5183

C
A

L
IT

E
R

R
A

 P
H

A
S
E

 4
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

2

S
T

R
E

E
T

, 
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

, 
W

A
T

E
R

, 
&

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

BRP JSL

SEPTEMBER 2020

SHEET
OF

JOB NUMBER

DATE

F
I
L
E

 
P

A
T

H
:
J
:
\
A

C
3
D

\
5
1
8
3
\
d
w

g
\
5
1
8
3
-
P

R
E

L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
S

e
p
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
2
0
 
-
 
2
:
4
6
p
m

DESIGNED
BY:

DRAFTED
BY:

B
D

F
IR

M
 I

D
 #

F
3
7
9
1

C
ar

ls
o

n
, 
B

ri
ga

n
ce

 &
 D

o
er

in
g,

 I
n

c.

C
JO

B
 N

A
M

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
H

E
E

T
 N

A
M

E
:

M
ai

n
 O

ff
ic

e
5
5
0
1
 W

e
st

 W
il
li
am

 C
an

n
o

n
 D

r.
A

u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
4
9

P
h

o
n

e
 N

o
. 
(5

1
2
) 

2
8
0
-5

1
6
0

C
iv

il
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
  

  
  

  
  

  
S
u
rv

e
y
in

g

N
o

rt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

1
2
1
2
9
 R

R
 6

2
0
 N

.,
 S

te
. 
6
0
0

A
u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
5
0

w
w

w
.c

b
d

e
n

g
.c

o
m

32

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
 N

O
T

E
 A

N
D

 D
E

T
A

IL
 (

1
 O

F
 2

)

14

Item 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' BC-BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FOR LOCAL STREET - RIBBON CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEXIBLE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.M.A.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIME COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES REFER TO GEOTECH REPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO TOC

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATIVE FILTER STRIP AS NOTED PER GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATIVE FILTER STRIP AS NOTED PER GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH PER GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH PER GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX-XXXX-XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID# F3791

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

cynthia
Typewriter
09/08/2020

Blf Admin
Line

Blf Admin
Text Box
T



PRELIMINARY  PLAN
CALITERRA PHASE 4 SECTION 12

5183

C
A

L
IT

E
R

R
A

 P
H

A
S
E

 4
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

2

S
T

R
E

E
T

, 
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

, 
W

A
T

E
R

, 
&

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

BRP JSL

SEPTEMBER 2020

SHEET
OF

JOB NUMBER

DATE

F
I
L
E

 
P

A
T

H
:
J
:
\
A

C
3
D

\
5
1
8
3
\
d
w

g
\
5
1
8
3
-
P

R
E

L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
S

e
p
 
0
9
,
 
2
0
2
0
 
-
 
3
:
1
9
p
m

DESIGNED
BY:

DRAFTED
BY:

B
D

F
IR

M
 I

D
 #

F
3
7
9
1

C
ar

ls
o

n
, 
B

ri
ga

n
ce

 &
 D

o
er

in
g,

 I
n

c.

C
JO

B
 N

A
M

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
H

E
E

T
 N

A
M

E
:

M
ai

n
 O

ff
ic

e
5
5
0
1
 W

e
st

 W
il
li
am

 C
an

n
o

n
 D

r.
A

u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
4
9

P
h

o
n

e
 N

o
. 
(5

1
2
) 

2
8
0
-5

1
6
0

C
iv

il
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
  

  
  

  
  

  
S
u
rv

e
y
in

g

N
o

rt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

1
2
1
2
9
 R

R
 6

2
0
 N

.,
 S

te
. 
6
0
0

A
u
st

in
, 
T

e
x
as

 7
8
7
5
0

w
w

w
.c

b
d

e
n

g
.c

o
m

33

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
 N

O
T

E
 A

N
D

 D
E

T
A

IL
S
  

(2
 O

F
 2

)

15

Item 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1.  THIS PROJECT IS WITHIN THE EXTRA TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ) OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS. 2.  NO PORTION OF THIS PROJECT LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE.  NO PORTION OF THIS PROJECT LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE. 3.  THIS PROJECT LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CONTRIBUTING ZONE OF THE EDWARDS AQUIFER ZONE.  THIS PROJECT LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CONTRIBUTING ZONE OF THE EDWARDS AQUIFER ZONE. 4.  THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE DRIPPING SPRINGS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT. 5.  ACCESS TO AND FROM CORNER LOTS SHALL ONLY BE PERMITTED FROM ONE STREET.  6.  NO PORTION OF THE SUBJECT PLAT PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN A DESIGNATED 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN AS DELINEATED ON      F.I.R.M. PANEL NO 48209C 0115F, DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2005, AS PREPARED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT      AGENCY. 7.  WATER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED TO EACH LOT FROM THE DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION. 8.  ORGANIZED WASTEWATER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED TO EACH LOT BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS. 9.  ELECTRIC SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE PEDERNALES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE.  10. TELEPHONE SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY VERIZON. 11. MINIMUM FRONT SETBACK SHALL BE 20'. 12. MINIMUM REAR SETBACK SHALL BE 20'. 13. MINIMUM SIDE AND INTERIOR SIDE YARD SETBACKS SHALL BE 5'. 14. MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACKS ADJACENT TO A PUBLIC STREET SHALL BE 10'. 15. UTILITY EASEMENTS OF 15 FEET SHALL BE LOCATED ALONG EACH SIDE OF DEDICATED R.O.W. AND 5' ALONG EACH SIDE LOT LINE.  16. ALL STREETS SHALL BE DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. 17. NO STRUCTURE SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY IS ISSUED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS. 18. NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A STATE APPROVED COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM.  19. NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A STATE APPROVED ORGANIZED WASTE WATER SYSTEM. 20. NO CONSTRUCTION OR OTHER DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION MAY BEGIN UNTIL ALL OF HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED. 21. DRIVEWAYS SHALL COMPLY WITH CHAPTER 721 OF HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AND BE PERMITTED THROUGH THE TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT OF HAYS COUNTY UNDER CHAPTER 751.   22. DEVELOPMENT AND RESTRICTIONS WITHIN THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND TCEQ WATER QUALITY BUFFER ZONES ARE LIMITED TO THOSE LISTED IN THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY'S (TCEQ) OPTIONAL ENHANCED MEASURES FOR THE PROTECTION OF WATER QUALITY IN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER (REVISED) OR AS PERMITTED BY THE TCEQ.  23. ALL LOTS ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE THEN CURRENT ADOPTED BUILDING CODE AS ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, AND THE FIRE CODE ADOPTED BY ESD #6. THIS IS TO INCLUDE THE PULLING OF BUILDING PERMITS THROUGH THE CITY OF FOR ALL APPLICABLE CONSTRUCTION. 24. PER THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND DEVELOPMENT SOLUTIONS CAT, LLC, THE CALITERRA DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO AN INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT (IPM) PLAN. 25. WATER QUALITY EASEMENT DEPICTED HEREON PROVIDE ACCESS TO HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.  AND ASSIGNS, FOR INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF WATER QUALITY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) PERMITTED UNDER TCEQ EDWARDS AQUIFER PROTECTION PROGRAM NO. 11000201. 26. SIDEWALKS WILL BE REQUIRED ALONG ONE SIDE OF ALL STREETS AND WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1. 27. ALL ROADWAYS IN THIS DEVELOPMENT ARE TO BE DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC AND MAINTAINED BY HAYS COUNTY. 28. ALL DRIVEWAYS SHALL HAVE ADEQUATE FRONTAGE TO ALLOW FOR COMPLIANCE WITH HAYS COUNTY DRIVEWAY SPACING REQUIREMENTS. 29. THIS PRELIMINARY PLAN IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CALITERRA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 30. THE INTENT OF THIS PROJECT IS TO COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS LIGHTING ORDINANCE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS} COUNTY OF HAYS} CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS} THIS PLAT, CALITERRA PRELIMINARY PLAN PHASE 4 SECTION 12 HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND CONSIDERED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND IS HEREBY APPROVED. APPROVED, THIS THE ___ DAY OF ____________2020.  BY MAYOR OR MAYOR PRO TEM, ATTEST ANDREA CUNNINGHAM, CITY SECRETARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX-XXXX-XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID# F3791

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
84769

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETT R. PASQUARELLA

cynthia
Typewriter
09/09/2020

Blf Admin
Line

Blf Admin
Callout
Remove from plat so that it doesn't require a plat vacation if there's a needed change. It's not a code requirement to remove them, but these seem to cause issues for developers and the city for minor issues. 

Blf Admin
Line

Blf Admin
Callout
Mim James, Planning & Zoning Chair 4.7(r)(4)

Blf Admin
Text Box
-Property owner signature block? 4.7(r)(1)-Surveyor/Engineer signature block and seal. 4.7(r)(3)-Schematic engineering plans of water and sewer lines and other infrastructure -4.7(m)



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 11, 2020 
 

   

      

Name: Bill Couch  
Company: Carlson, Brigance and Doering, Inc.  
Address: 5501 W William Cannon Dr.  
                 Austin, TX 78749 
Email: bill@cbdeng.com 

 

   

      

Dear Bill Couch:  
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2020-0030 is being denied on November 11, 2020 due to the 
following: 

 

      

Amanda Padilla 
Development Coordinator apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

1. Add signature block for surveyor/engineer, property owner, and for P & Z Chair; 
2. Remove all building lines;  
3. Show floodplain boundary;  
4. Label all filled subdivisions with recording information; and 
5. Update vicinity map to make more legible.  

 

Robby Callegari  
rcallegari@Cma-engineering.com 

6. how water and wastewater lines on the plans before the first review can begin 

Dillon Polk 
North Hays ESD #6 dpolk@northhaysfire.com 

7. Preliminary plan approved 
 

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

8. Impervious cover calculations in Engineering Report do not match the IC calculation table for Ph 4 Sec 12.  I 
believe the discrepancy is in the Street and sidewalk IC and the Total IC.  Please review and confirm IC 
calculations 

9. The FEMA map provided in the Report is from Travis County and not relative to this project.  Please update FEMA 
map in report. 

10. Please confirm that drainage calculations utilize Atlas 14 rainfall for Dripping Springs.  Atlas 14 rainfall data for 
Dripping Springs can be found at the following link: 
https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_cont.html?bkmrk=ne 

11. Turn on Water Quality Buffer Zone (WQBZ) linework in Preliminary Plat. 
12. Address how the WQBZ were sized in the engineering report.  Explain the upstream drainage basin size 

determined that led to the sizing of the WQBZ per [WQO 22.05.017] 
13. Provide a sidewalks plan. [Subdivision Ord. 15.2.2] 

16

Item 2.

https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_cont.html?bkmrk=ne


14. Provide a Graphic Scale Bar per [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist] 
15. Provide a note naming who will be responsible for operation and maintenance of Stormwater Utilities and Ponds 

per [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist] 
16. Provide Schematic Engineering Plans of the water and sewer lines to be constructed to serve this Preliminary Plat 

per [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist]. 
17. Add the following note: “This Development is subject the Name of Development Agreement dated Month, Day, 

Year between the City of Dripping Springs and Developer recorded in Volume  Document #, Public Records of 
Hays County, Texas.” 

18. Add the following note: Street Trees shall be planted in each lot prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy 
per the quantity, size and location requirements of [Sub Ord 28.06.051]. 

19. Label Block I, Lot 37 as Open Space/Drainage Easement Lot. 
20. Label Block L, Lot 45 as Open Space/Drainage Easement Lot. 
21. Provide a table showing a direct comparison of existing vs proposed flow for the 2yr, 25yr and 100yr storm 

events at Analysis Points A, B & C [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements Checklist]. 
 

      

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information 
regarding resubmitting an application and dates please visit our website at 
http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this is the first denial of this project. If the project is denied again for unaddressed comments it will 
require a complete refiling including a refiling fee, 10-day completeness check, and 30-day comment review period. To 
avoid this, we encourage applicants to schedule a meeting with reviewers to properly address the above comments. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Michelle Fischer 
City Administrator  
City of Dripping Springs 

 

      

 

17

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
November 18, 2020 

Project No:  ZA2020-0008 

Project Planner:  Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Van Merkel Duplex 

Property Location: 102 Rose Drive 

Legal Description: 
Approximately .748 acres situated in the B.F. Hanna Survey No. 428, Hays County, 

Texas 

Applicant: Dave Merkel and Fred Van Cura 

Property Owner: Van Merkel, LLC 

Request: Rezoning request from AG, Agricultural, to Two-Family Residential, Duplex, SF-4 

18

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant submitted a petition for annexation of this property. City Council moved at their November 10, 2020 

meeting to proceed with negotiating the service plan agreement for the proposed annexation, and the public hearing is 

scheduled for the annexation at the council’s December 8, 2020 meeting.  

When a property is annexed into the city, it is designated as Agricultural until the applicant submits a rezoning request. 

For this property, the applicant submitted the two applications at the same time to move forward with zoning concurrently 

with the annexation.  

The applicant is proposing to construct two duplexes or four total units on the site if the zoning is approved. The applicant 

will also be required to coordinate with the owners of the private drive, because both Rose Drive, as well as Purcell Place 

are private driveways not owned or maintained by the city. The applicant will also be required to plat the property to 

construct the lots.  

Surrounding Properties 

 
 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below: 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

(ETJ) 

Low Density Residential, 

and commercial along U.S. 

290 

Not referenced 

East Two-Family Residential Condo development of Medium Density 

19

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

(SF-4) two-family residential 

structures 

Residential 

South 

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

(ETJ), and Commercial 

Services (CS) 

Residential 

Medium Density 

Residential  

West 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

(ETJ) 

Low-density residential, 

and retail 

Medium Density 

Residential 

 

The majority of this area is residential in nature, including a condo lot immediately to the east, which is known as the 26 

Doors Subdivision. This lot is developed with 13 two-family structures, or 26 units.  

 

Two-Family Residential – Duplex (SF-4) is intended to provide for development of detached, two-family residence 

structures on moderate size lots of at least 10,000 square feet in size.  

 

Development Standards 

Development Standards for Two-Family Residential (SF-4) 

  

Size of Lots  

Minimum Lot area Five thousand (10,000) square feet 

Minimum Lot Width Fifty feet (70’). 

Minimum Lot Depth One hundred feet (100'). 

Setback Requirements  

Minimum Front Yard 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard 10’; 15’ from a street ROW for a 

corner lot 

Minimum Rear Yard 20’ 

Height Regulations  

Main Building 
2 ½ stories, or 40’, whichever is less, 

for the main building 

Accessory Building 25’ 

 

Uses that are permitted within the SF-4 zoning district include single-family residential, duplexes, churches, and parks. 

Should the property be rezoned, the applicant will be required to plat the subdivision to accommodate more than one set 

of duplexes on the lot.  

 

Summary 

 

2.28.2 In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the P&Z and the City Council shall consider the 

following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. Whether the proposed change will be 

appropriate in the immediate area concerned; 

This area of the city is still a little in transition from 

being more rural, to seeing newer developments 

within this area. While there is a subdivision 

immediately to the east of this parcel that is zoned 

and developed with duplexes, the area immediately 

west of the property is not as dense as the area to the 

east. However, with that said, this parcel is less than 

an acre and would not be able to develop more than 

three structures based on the square footage 

requirements for a lot zoned SF-4, as well as the 

20

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

constraints of adding septic. 

2. Their relationship to the general area and the 

City as a whole; 

The use proposed will fit in with the surrounding 

area for the most part, with the exception of the area 

west of the parcel with is mostly low-density 

residential lots.  

 

3. Whether the proposed change is in accord with 

any existing or proposed plans for providing 

public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary 

sewers, and other utilities to the area; 

This property is not shown on any existing or 

proposed plans for public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 

area. The streets adjacent to this lot are all private.  

4. The amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the vicinity 

and elsewhere in the City, and any special 

circumstances which may make a substantial 

part of such undeveloped land unavailable for 

development; 

This property will have no negative effect on other 

SF-4 zoning districts.  

5. The recent rate at which land is being developed 

in the same zoning classification, particularly in 

the vicinity of the proposed change; 

There is a development immediately to the east that 

is developed under the SF-4 zoning district, which 

has 26 units on an approximate 5.7-acre lot.   

6. How other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

Based on the area, the proposed rezone of this lot 

will not affect the surrounding area, or similar 

developments, as this site is less than an acre.   

7. Whether the proposed change treats the subject 

parcel of land in a manner which is significantly 

different from decisions made involving other, 

similarly situated parcels; and 

This property is being treated similarly to other 

Zoning changes. 

8. Any other factors which will substantially affect 

the public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare. 

Staff does not see this Zoning Change affecting the 

public health, safety, morals or general welfare.  

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

November 18, 2020 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

December 8, 2020 - City Council Meeting  

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1: Rezoning Application 

Exhibit 2: Concept Plan 

Exhibit 3: Draft Zoning Ordinance and Survey 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested rezoning request.  

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the rezoning application.  

21

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: No public comment was received for this request. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Support the development of affordable housing. 

Support varying housing types.  

 

 

22

Item 3.



23

Item 3.



24

Item 3.



25

Item 3.



26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0008 

Ordinance No _______   Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS ORDINANCE 

No.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS, TEXAS (“CITY”), REZONING TWO TRACTS 

OF LAND, TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 0.748 

ACRES FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO TWO-

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, DUPLEX (SF-4); AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS OF 

FACT; ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTE THE CHANGE ON THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY; PROPER 

NOTICE & MEETING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to 

promote orderly land use and development within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds to be reasonable and necessary the rezoning of the 

tracts, described more fully in Attachment “A” and totaling approximately 

0.748 acre, from Agricultural (Ag) To Two-Family Residential, Duplex 

(Sf-4); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes changed conditions and circumstances in the 

particular location; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning change is compatible with the 

surrounding area and with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing required by law, a public hearing was held before 

the Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission on November 

18, 2020 to consider the proposed amendment and the Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended approval of the proposed change; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after public hearing held by the City Council on December 8, 2020, the 

City Council voted to approve the recommendation of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has 

general authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the 

good government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for 

28

Item 3.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0008 

Ordinance No _______   Page 2 of 5 

carrying out a power granted by law to the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has 

the authority to zone and rezone property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good 

government, peace or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this 

Ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of 

fact as expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 
One tract of land totaling approximately 0.748 acre and described more fully in 

Attachment “A” and shown in Attachment “B”, is hereby rezoned from Agricultural (Ag) 

To Two-Family Residential, Duplex (Sf-4). 

 
3. REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any 

provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, 

herein. 

 
4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be 

deemed invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative 

agency with jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any 

other valid portion of this Ordinance. 

 

5. CHANGE ON ZONING MAP 

 

The City Administrator is hereby authorized to and shall promptly note the zoning change on 

the official Zoning Map of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage. 

 
7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

29

Item 3.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0008 

Ordinance No _______   Page 3 of 5 

 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 

passed was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the 

time, place and purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
PASSED & APPROVED this, the  day of  _ 2020, by a vote of 

 (ayes) to  (nays) to  (abstentions) of the City Council of 

Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

by:    

Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30

Item 3.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0008 

Ordinance No _______  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

Attachment “A” Description of Tract 

 

0.748 ACRE OF LAND OUT OF THE B.F. HANNA SURVEY NO. 428 IN HAYS 

COUNTY, TEXAS. BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN 10.75 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

AS CONVEYED TO DON DUVALL AND ROSE DUVALL BY DEED RECORDED IN 

VOLUME 425 PAGE 775 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

31

Item 3.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0008 

Ordinance No _______  Page 5 of 5 

 

Attachment “B”  

0.748 ACRE Survey 
 

32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
November 18, 2020 

Project No:  ZA2020-0010 

Project Planner:  Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Estate of Charlie N. Haydon 

Property Location: West of RR 12, south of Springlake Drive, and north of Mercer Street 

Legal Description: 
Approximately one (1) acre situated in the Phillip A. Smith Survey No. 26, Abstract 

No. 415 

Applicant: J Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC c/o Jon Thompson  

Property Owner: Estate of Charlie N. Haydon, POC Barry Haydon and Connie Brown 

Request: Rezoning request from Two-Family Residential, Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail (GR) 

34

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Two-Family Residential, Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail (GR).  

The applicant does not have a specific use in mind, but is identified potential uses as office or retail for the site.  

 

Surrounding Properties 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below: 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 
Local Retail (LR), and SF-

4 
Residential 

None of these 

properties are called out 

in the comprehensive 

plan 

East Community Services (CS) 
Residential and 

commercial 

South General Retail (GR) Residential 

West 
Planned Development 

District 

Heritage Subdivision 

(residential) 

 

 
35

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

Development Standards 

Development Standards for General Retail (GR) 

  

Size of Lots  

Minimum Lot area 10,000 sf 

Minimum Lot Width 100’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 150’ 

Setback Requirements  

Minimum Front Yard 25’; all yard adjacent to a street shall 

be considered a front yard 

Minimum Side Yard 25’; 25’ adjacent to a public street or 

residential lot 

Interior Side Yards When retail uses are platted adjacent 

to other retail uses and integrated into 

an overall shopping center site, 

creating lease spaces abutting one 

another, no side yard is required 

provided it complies with the City’s 

Building Code. 

Minimum Rear Yard 25’ 

Adjacent to SF Any retail use that is located adjacent 

to (and not across a ROW from) any 

SF zoning district shall be setback 

from the applicable residential district 

property line by 40’.  

Height Regulations  

Main Building 
2 ½ stories, or 40’, whichever is less, 

for the main building 

Accessory Building Maximum of 1 story,  25’  

Other Development Standards 

Gross Floor Area 
GFA for each building shall not 

exceed 60,000 sf per building 

Impervious Cover 
60% total, including main buildings 

and accessory buildings 

Min. Building Separation 

There shall be a minimum 80’ 

separation between structures, or a 

minimum separation as required by 

the City’s Fire Code, whichever is 

greater.  

 

Some uses that are permitted within the GR zoning district by right include, retail, office, convenience stores with gas 

sales, hotel/motel, and multi-family residential.  

 

Summary 

 

2.28.2 In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the P&Z and the City Council shall consider the 

following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. Whether the proposed change will be 

appropriate in the immediate area concerned; 

The property is located along one of the major 

gateway streets into the City of Dripping Springs, 
36

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

where many surrounding properties are zoned for 

similar uses, including Local Retail and General 

Retail. However, it is important to note that while 

properties are zoned for more intense uses, the area 

is still mostly residential.  

2. Their relationship to the general area and the 

City as a whole; 

The use proposed will fit in with the surrounding 

area in regard to zoning districts in the area, 

however, there are several properties in the area that 

have not developed despite being zoned for more 

intense uses.   

 

3. Whether the proposed change is in accord with 

any existing or proposed plans for providing 

public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary 

sewers, and other utilities to the area; 

This property is not shown on any existing or 

proposed plans for public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 

area.   

4. The amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the vicinity 

and elsewhere in the City, and any special 

circumstances which may make a substantial 

part of such undeveloped land unavailable for 

development; 

This property would not be affected by any 

proposed zoning districts that are similar.  

5. The recent rate at which land is being developed 

in the same zoning classification, particularly in 

the vicinity of the proposed change; 

This area will not be affected by this proposed 

rezoning. 

6. How other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

Based on the area, the proposed rezone of this lot 

will not affect the surrounding area, or similar 

developments.   

7. Whether the proposed change treats the subject 

parcel of land in a manner which is significantly 

different from decisions made involving other, 

similarly situated parcels; and 

This property is being treated similarly to other 

Zoning changes. 

8. Any other factors which will substantially affect 

the public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare. 

Staff does not see this Zoning Change affecting the 

public health, safety, morals or general welfare.  

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

November 18, 2020 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

December 8, 2020 - City Council Meeting  

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1: Rezoning Application 

Exhibit 2: Zoning Ordinance and Survey  

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested rezoning request.  

37

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the rezoning application.  

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: No public comment was received for this request. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

38

Item 4.



CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 
PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •   MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

• 512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com 

 

Revised 11.30.2018   Page 1 of 4 
 
 

ZONING/PDD AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 
 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY _______________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 
  
 

Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

REASONS FOR AMENDMENT  

 ☐ TO CORRECT ANY ERROR IN THE REGULATION 
OR MAP 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGES IN TECHNOLOGY, STYLE 
OF LIVING, OR MANNER OF CONDUCTING BUSINESS 

 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGED CONDITIONS OR 
CIRCUMSTANCES IN A PARTICULAR LOCALITY 

 
☐ TO MAKE CHANGES IN ORDER TO IMPLEMENT 
POLICIES REFLECTED WITHIN THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 94E0BCFC-ADE3-482A-958B-7C81E8545AE1

J Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC

PO Box 547

78620

jthomsonconsultingds@gmail.com

78620

Jon Thompson

Texas

 

(512) 695-7493 (Barry)

 
X

Texas

(512) 568-2184

Dripping Springs

Estate of Charlie N. Haydon (POC: Barry Haydon / Connie Brown)

PO Box 172

cbtreasures04@yahoo.com (Connie Brown)

Dripping Springs

X

39

Item 4.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? * 
(See attached agreement). 

☐ YES (REQUIRED)* ☐ YES (VOLUNTARY)* ☐ NO* 
 
* If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed 
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a 
condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab 
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for more information). 
  

PROPERTY & ZONING INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS   

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID#  

LOCATED IN ☐ CITY LIMITS    

☐ EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION  

CURRENT ZONING  

REQUESTED 
ZONING/AMENDMENT TO PDD 

 

REASON FOR REQUEST 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT 
PROPOSED USES 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 94E0BCFC-ADE3-482A-958B-7C81E8545AE1

X

Estate of Charlie N. Haydon

X  

 

Unaddressed RR 12

A0415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY, ACRES 1.00

SF4

R17873

 

Potential uses are retail / office; any uses allowed for in GR zoning that are Permitted 
and can meet the requirements for development on a 1 acre parcel. 

Property is vacant; prospective buyer needs zoning reflective of a commercial nature 
for retail / office. GR is appropriate for this area considering the tract fronts onto RR12 
(the secondary main access for Dripping Springs) and considering that the tract south 
of this tract is also zoned GR and tracts across the street are zoned CS. 

GR

40

Item 4.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 4 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE 

The undersigned, hereby confirms that he/she/it is the owner of the above described real property and 
further, that ______________________________ is authorized to act as my agent and representative with 
respect to this Application and the City’s zoning amendment process.  
(As recorded in the Hays County Property Deed Records, Vol. ______, Pg. ________.) 

_____________________________________ 
Name 

_____________________________________ 
Title 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HAYS § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ______________, 

201___ by _____________________________________. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

My Commission Expires: _____________________________ 

__________________________________ 
Name of Applicant 

Jon Thompson

122 403

Jon Thompson

DocuSign Envelope ID: 94E0BCFC-ADE3-482A-958B-7C81E8545AE1

Title - 
"Executress 
of Charlie N.
 Haydon 
Estate

Notary 
signature and
 seal

41

Item 4.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 4 

ZONING AMENDMENT SUBMITTAL 

 CHECKLIST 
STAFF APPLICANT 

☐ ☐ Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized 
☐ ☐ Application Fee-Zoning Amendment or PDD Amendment (refer to Fee Schedule) 

☐ ☐

PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents   

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what 
digital contents are included. 

☐ ☐ Billing Contact Form 
☐ ☐ GIS Data 

☐ ☐
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement - signed with attached 
photos/drawings (required if marked “Yes (Required)” on above Lighting 
Ordinance Section of application) 

☐ ☐ Legal Description 
☐ ☐ Concept Plan 
☐ ☐ Plans 
☐ ☐ Maps 
☐ ☐ Architectural Elevation 
☐ ☐ Explanation for request (attach extra sheets if necessary) 
☐ ☐ Information about proposed uses (attach extra sheets if necessary) 
☐ ☐ Public Notice Sign   (refer to Fee Schedule) 
☐ ☐ Proof of Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed 
☐ ☐ Copy of Planned Development District (if applicable) 

☐ ☐ 
Digital Copy of the Proposed Zoning or Planned Development District 
Amendment 

All required items and information (including all applicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by 
the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. 
By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and met the above requirements for a complete 
submittal: 

Applicant Signature Date 
September 23, 2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: 94E0BCFC-ADE3-482A-958B-7C81E8545AE1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42

Item 4.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


Received on/by: 

Project Number:  _____-_____ 
Only filled out by staff 

Date, initials 

BILLING CONTACT FORM 

Project Name:   

Project Address:   

Project Applicant Name:  

Billing Contact Information 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Email:  Phone Number:  

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply): 

� Alternative Standard Special Exception 
� Certificate of Appropriateness � Street Closure Permit 
� Conditional Use Permit � Subdivision 
� Development Agreement � Waiver 
� Exterior Design � Wastewater Service 
� Landscape Plan � Variance 
� Lighting Plan � Zoning 
� Site Development Permit � Other 

Applicants are required to pay all associated costs associated with a project’s application for a 
permit, plan, certificate, special exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreement, 
regardless of City approval. Associated costs may include, but are not limited to, public notices 
and outside professional services provided to the City by engineers, attorneys, surveyors, 
inspectors, landscape consultants, lighting consultants, architects, historic preservation 
consultants, and others, as required. Associated costs will be billed at cost plus 20% to cover 
the City’s additional administrative costs. Please see the online Master Fee Schedule for more 
details. By signing below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is financially 
accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees. 

Signature of Applicant Date 

� 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 94E0BCFC-ADE3-482A-958B-7C81E8545AE1

 

Austin, Texas 78716

(512) 774-7867

 

September 23, 2020

Estate of Charlie N. Haydon (R17873) Zoning Amendment

X

 

 

 

 

Lodestar Bureau, LLC

PO Box 160266

Unaddressed RR 12

 

Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

pv@lodestar.company

 

43

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0010 

Ordinance No _______   Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS ORDINANCE 

No.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS, TEXAS (“CITY”), REZONING TWO TRACTS 

OF LAND, TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 0.990 ACRE 

FROM TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, DUPLEX (SF-4) 

TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT (GR); AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS OF 

FACT; ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTE THE CHANGE ON THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY; PROPER 

NOTICE & MEETING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to 

promote orderly land use and development within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds to be reasonable and necessary the rezoning of the 

tracts, described more fully in Attachment “A” and totaling approximately 

0.990 acre, from Two Family Residential, Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail 

District (GR); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes changed conditions and circumstances in the 

particular location; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning change is compatible with the 

surrounding area and with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing required by law, a public hearing was held before 

the Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission on November 

18, 2020 to consider the proposed amendment and the Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended approval of the proposed change; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after public hearing held by the City Council on December 8, 2020, the 

City Council voted to approve the recommendation of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has 

general authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the 

good government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for 

44

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0010 

Ordinance No _______   Page 2 of 5 

carrying out a power granted by law to the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has 

the authority to zone and rezone property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good 

government, peace or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this 

Ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of 

fact as expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 
One tract of land totaling approximately 0.990 acre and described more fully in 

Attachment “A” and shown in Attachment “B”, is hereby rezoned from Two Family 

Residential, Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail (GR). 

 
3. REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any 

provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, 

herein. 

 
4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be 

deemed invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative 

agency with jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any 

other valid portion of this Ordinance. 

 

5. CHANGE ON ZONING MAP 

 

The City Administrator is hereby authorized to and shall promptly note the zoning change on 

the official Zoning Map of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage. 

 
7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

45

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0010 

Ordinance No _______   Page 3 of 5 

 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 

passed was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the 

time, place and purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
PASSED & APPROVED this, the  day of  _ 2020, by a vote of 

 (ayes) to  (nays) to  (abstentions) of the City Council of 

Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

by:    

Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0010 

Ordinance No _______  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

Attachment “A” Description of Tract 

 

BEING A 0.990 ACRE TRACT  OF LAND SITUATED IN THE PHILLIP A. SMITH 

SURVEY NO 26, ABSTRACT NO. 415, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ALL THAT 

CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED TO CHARLIE N. HAYDON, AS  

RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO.2011-11024616, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, 

HAYS COUNTY HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

47

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0010 

Ordinance No _______  Page 5 of 5 

 

Attachment “B”  

0.990 ACRE Survey 
 

48

Item 4.



           Robert T. Paul, Jr.
49

Item 4.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

November 18, 2020 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0026 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Howard Ranch Commercial Replat with Vacation    

Property Location:  South of the intersection of Ranch Road 12 and Farm-to-Market 150 

Legal Description:  Howard Ranch Commercial Lot 1, Acres 7.5  

Applicant: Bill Couch, CBD, INC  

Property Owner: Howard Land and Cattle Company 

Request: Applicant is asking to Replat with a vacation the subdivision Howard Ranch Commercial.  

Staff Recommendation  

Staff Recommends denial of the replat with a vacation of the Howard Ranch Commercial Subdivision 
 

 
50

Item 5.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting to Replat with a Vacation the Howard Ranch Commercial Subdivision, Lot 1. The applicant 

is vacating a Plat note and a plat restriction. The subdivision is a single lot subdivision that had previously been 

administratively approved as a minor plat in 2018.  

 

The subject property was annexed into the City Limits at the July 9, 2013 City Council Meeting (Ord No.1803.72). The 

property was rezoned to Commercial Services in May 2020. The lot currently has a site development permit for a 

Convenience Store with gas sales, retail structures, and live/work structures.  The site development plan is requesting a 

driveway to be located on Farm-to-Market 150. The Current plat for Howard Ranch Commercial contains a plat note that 

restricts any additional driveways. 

 

The purpose for the plat vacation is to remove a note and a restriction. The plat note that the applicant is vacating is note 

# 20 of the original plat that states: 

 

“No other driveway access is allowed from state roads except as allowed in the access easement on the face of 

the plat.”   

 
The second restriction is for a 35-foot Building line setback located adjacent to FM 150, at the northern property line.  
 

 
Property History:  

 

The project was vested under August 1, 2003 City Code of Ordinances and the project was granted a grandfather 

determination status in 2016.  

 

In 2007, the City of Dripping Springs entered into a Wastewater Agreement with the Property that granted the subject 

lot and adjacent lots wastewater service. The Wastewater agreement went through two (2) amendments in 2008 to extend 

the time to connect and pay fees for wastewater. The Second amendment to the Wastewater Agreement added Annexation 

requirements, proposed land uses and Architectural Standards for the Commercial Tracts. 

 

In 2017, the City entered into an agreement regarding development matters related to future permitting and development 

of the Howard Commercial Tract and the 150 Commercial Tract. The agreement established a building line along FM 

150. The agreement did not provide Right-of-way. The agreement stated that any acquisition of any right of way from 

the Owner for the widening or realignment of FM 150 must proceed according to the requirements of applicable law.  

 

The agreement also required certain drainage improvements and allowed for reduction of the Water Quality Buffer Zone. 

Hays County and the City both identified FM 150 and Ranch Road 12 as a key component on their Master Transportation 

Thoroughfare plans for future connections. Hays County has informed the City that it is actively pursuing right of way 

on this property. 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located the corner of Ranch Road 12 and Farm-to Market 150.  

 

Current Condition of Lot:  

The land is currently undeveloped, but the applicant has a site development plan on hold due to the replat with vacation.  

 

 

Summary, Recommendation, and Required Action 
 

Staff recommends denial of the replat with a vacation of the Howard Ranch Commercial Plat due to the 

Outstanding comments (Exhibit 6) attached in the staff report.  
51

Item 5.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Public Notification 

 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 –Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Howard Ranch Commercial Recorded Plat 

Exhibit 3 – Howard Ranch Commercial Proposed Plat 

Exhibit 4 – Howard Ranch Plat Vacation Document 

Exhibit 5 – Engineer Summary Letter 

Exhibit 6 – Outstanding Comments 

 

 

Recommended Action: Deny the replat with a vacation, with outstanding comments 

Alternatives/Options: N/A 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

52

Item 5.



53

Item 5.



54

Item 5.



55

Item 5.



56

Item 5.



57

Item 5.



58

Item 5.

bill
Typewriter
10-5-20



59

Item 5.

belliott
Pencil



60

Item 5.

belliott
Pencil



61

Item 5.



62

Item 5.



63

Item 5.



64

Item 5.



Received on/by: 
 _________________ 

Date, initials 

BILLING CONTACT FORM 

Project Name: _________________________________________________________________ 

Project Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Project Applicant Name: _________________________________________________________ 

Billing Contact Information 

Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

    __________________________________________________________ 

Email: __________________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: __________________________________________________________ 

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply):   

 Alternative Standard 

 Conditional Use Permit 

 Development Agreement 

 Exterior Design 

 Landscape Plan 

 Lighting Plan 

 Site Development Permit 

 Special Exception 

 Street Closure Permit 

 Subdivision

 Waiver 

 Wastewater Service 

 Variance 

 Zoning 

 Other:____________________________ 

Applicants are required to pay all associated costs associated with a project’s application for a permit, plan, special 

exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreement, regardless of City approval. Associated costs may 

include, but are not limited to, public notices and outside professional services provided to the City by engineers, 

attorneys, surveyors, inspectors, landscape consultants, lighting consultants, architects, and others, as required.  

Associated costs will be billed at cost plus 20% to cover the City’s additional administrative costs. Please see the 

online Master Fee Schedule for more details. By signing below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is 

financially accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees.  

_______________________________________________ _________________ 

  Signature of Applicant   Date 

x

Howard Ranch Commercial
intersection of Highway No. 12 east & FM 150 south

Erik Howard of HOWARD LAND & CATTLE LTD

Howard Land and Cattle Ltd. (Erik Howard)
23255 West F.M. 150
Driftwood, Texas 78619

erik@howardranch.com
512-692-9714

Digitally signed by 1bbffaee-fb05-4fd5-83f8-6bc5fac94bf9
DN: CN=1bbffaee-fb05-4fd5-83f8-6bc5fac94bf9
Reason: I agree to the terms defined by the placement of my signature in this document
Location: your signing location here
Date: 2020-10-05 12:40:30
Foxit PhantomPDF Version: 9.7.0

1bbffaee-fb05-4fd5-83f8-6bc
5fac94bf9 10/5/2020

65

Item 5.



66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

68

Item 5.



Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

69

Item 5.



COUNTY OF HAYS § 

 § 

STATE OF TEXAS §  

 

  

  

PARTIAL VACATION AND REPLAT OF SUBDIVISION TO WIT: 

HOWARD RANCH COMMERCIAL RECORDED IN CFN 18008199, IN 

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

  

  

WHEREAS, Howard Land and Cattle, Ltd, Owner of approximately 7.5 acres of land, more or 

less, and being known as HOWARD RANCH COMMERCIAL, recorded in       

CFN 18008199 of the plat records of Hays County, Texas out of the J Stiles Survey 

No. 31, Abstract No. 174, in Hays County, Texas as conveyed to it by special 

warranty deed Volume 2894 Page 336 of the official records of Hays County, 

Texas; and  

  

WHEREAS, on the ____  day of __________ 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission of 

the City of Dripping Springs, Texas, at its regular meeting, did approve the 

Vacation and Replat of HOWARD RANCH COMMERCIAL, of that certain plat 

of record by CFN 18008199 of the Plat Records of Hays County upon application 

thereof by the Owners of all land covered thereby; and   

 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Dripping Springs, 

Texas does by these presents hereby declare that:  

  

The above recitals are true and correct and that HOWARD RANCH COMMERCIAL, of that 

certain plat of record by CFN 18008199 of the Plat Records of Hays County are to be partially 

vacated and the REPLAT OF HOWARD RANCH is hereby approved. 

  

EXECUTED THIS, the _____ day of ____________. 

 

 

 

______________________ 

Michelle Fischer 

City Administrator 

70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: November 11, 2020 
 

   

      

Name: Bill Couch  
Company: Carlson, Brigance and Doering, Inc.  
Address: 5501 W William Cannon Dr.  
               Austin, Texas 78749 
Email: bill@cbdeng.com  

 

   

      

Dear Bill Couch:  
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2020-0026 Howard Ranch Replat and Plat Vacation is being 
denied on November 11, 2020 due to the following: 

 

      

Amanda Padilla 
Development Coordinator apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

1. Add City Limits ad ETJ to vicintiy map [Section 4.7 (A)] 

2. Add graphic scale [Section 4.7 (i)] 

3. Change the City's Signature block to the following [Section 4.7 (r)(4)]:  

STATE OF TEXAS } 

COUNTY OF HAYS } 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS } 

THIS PLAT, Name and Type of Plat , HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND CONSIDERED BY  

THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND IS HEREBY APPROVED. 

APPROVED, THIS THE DAY OF 20 ,  

BY:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISION CHAIR OR VICE CHAIR, 

ATTEST: 

ANDREA CUNNINGHAM, CITY SECRETARY 

4. Change County Clerk from "Liz Gonzalez" to "Elaine Hanson Cardenas" 

5. Place note on plans [Section 15]:  

Sidewalks shall be provided per City Ordinances. 

6. Plat Vacation document needs to be signed by all owners prior to approval of the vacation [Section 9.1] 

72

Item 5.

mailto:bill@cbdeng.com


7. Provide a purpose of replat statement on the plat. [Section 7.3] 

Robby Callegari  
Wastewater rcallegari@cma-engineering.com  

8. The attached sanitary easement was supposed to be recorded for the 12 TE line constructed as part of the 
Amendment 1 WWTP Upgrades, but I am not sure it was.  If it has not, it should be added to the plat.  If it has 
been recorded, it should be shown on the plat. 

9. The proposed 20’ PUE along FM 150 cannot be recorded over the City of Dripping Springs’ 25’ sanitary 
easements.  The proposed 20’ PUE should be located south of the 25’ sanitary easements,  and run the entire 
length of the 25‘ sanitary easement until it conflicts with the existing water line easement. 

10. The 20’x25’ temporary construction easement should be included (if not on plat, then by separate instrument). 

11. The wastewater line shown in the City’s sanitary easement labeled “FM” is actually a “TE” line. 

12. Verify that the entire pressure sewer system will be owned and operated by the Developer/Owner. 

13. What is the anticipated wastewater peak flow from the Howard Ranch sewer systems (The Gardens at Howard 
Ranch and Howard Commercial Park)? 

14. Provide a detail for the new FM connection to the City’s manhole. 

15. If TE is to be used for irrigation, irrigation lines, valve boxes and sprinkler heads need to be purple and meet the 
requirements of 30 TAC, Chapter 210. 

Dillon Polk 
North Hays ESD #6 dpolk@northhaysfire.com 

16. Approved  

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

17. Provide a building setback measured from the RM 150 right-of-way (ROW) line proposed by Hays County.  The 
proposed RM 150 ROW line can be seen on Hays County construction plan documents  for RM 150 at RM 12 
currently under design. Per [Zoning Ord 5.27.5]    Where a future right-of-way line has been established for future 
widening or opening of a street or thoroughfare, upon which a lot abuts, then the front, side, or rear yard shall be 
measured from the future right-of-way line. The City encourages the applicant to take into account the Hays 
County construction plans when it works through this submittal. 

18. Per the current City Transportation Plan, the RM 150/RM 12 intersection is to be realigned to a point south of the 
existing cemetery on the west side of RR12 to facilitate a future extension of FM 150 west along the southern 
property boundary of Caliterra.  Provide Right of Way within this tract sufficient to realign FM 150 as indicated by 
the City Transportation Plan. [Site Dev Ord. 28.04.010(c)(7)] 

19. Existing plat note 20 states “NO OTHER DRIVEWAY ACCESS IS ALLOWED FROM STATE ROADS EXCEPT AS 
ALLOWED IN THE ACCESS EASEMENT ON THE FACE OF THE PLAT”.  Removal of this note would be in conflict 
with Hays County’s Construction Plans for the intersection of RM 150 & RM 12 currently at 60% design stage.  
Please provide evidence of approval from Hays County Transportation Department and TxDOT for a driveway 
along RM 150 before the City will consider removing Plat note 20.   

20. Add a note naming who will be responsible for operation and maintenance of Stormwater Utilities and Ponds per 
[Final Plat Info Requirements Checklist]. 

21. Show the delineation of the Water Quality Buffer Zone (WQBZ) per [WQO 22.02.017]. 

73

Item 5.

mailto:rcallegari@cma-engineering.com


22. The Plat signature block references Arrowhead Ranch.  Update. 

23. Delete City Engineer signature block.  Update signature block per City Planners comments 

24. Add a graphic “bar” scale per [Final Plat Info Requirements Checklist]. 
 

      

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information 
regarding resubmitting an application and dates please visit our website at 
http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this is the first denial of this project. If the project is denied again for unaddressed comments it will 
require a complete refiling including a refiling fee, 10-day completeness check, and 30-day comment review period. To 
avoid this, we encourage applicants to schedule a meeting with reviewers to properly address the above comments. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

Regards,  
 
Michelle Fischer 
City Administrator  
City of Dripping Springs 

 

      

 

74

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


 
 

Hays County Development Services 

2171 Yarrington Rd, San Marcos, TX 78666 
512-393-2160 / 512-493-1915 fax 

 
 
 
 

  
10/23/2020 
 
Howard Ranch Commercial Vacation and Replat Lot 1 (City of Dripping Springs) 
 

1. W FM Highway No. 150 – Approve (existing road) 
2. RM Highway No. 12 – Approve (existing road) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

75

Item 5.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

November 18, 2020 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0021 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Parten Ranch Phase 2, Lots 6 and 7 Partial Vacation and Replat  

Property Location:  1.5 miles southwest of the intersection of Nutty Brown Road and FM 1826 

Legal Description:  PARTEN RANCH PHASE 2, BLOCK A, Lot 7, ACRES 0.682, (OPEN 

SPACE/DRAINAGE); PARTEN RANCH PHASE 2, BLOCK A, Lot 6, ACRES 1.358 

Applicant: HM Parten Ranch Development, Inc  

Property Owner: HM Parten Ranch Development, Inc 

Request: Applicant is requesting to partially vacate an open space and drainage easement and replat 

lots 6 and 7.  

Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the replat with vacation for Parten Ranch Phase 2, Lots 6 and 7. 
 

 
76

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting to partially vacate the Parten Ranch Phase 2 Lot 7 Drainage and Open Space Lot and replat 

lots 6 and 7, to allow lot 6 to have more buildable area.  

 

 
Figure 1: Original Plat  

       
Figure 2: Proposed Replat 

 

Parten Ranch Phase 2 Final Plat was approved and Recorded on September 12, 2019. Lot 7 was calculated and shown on 

the Parks and Open Space Master Plan for Parten Ranch. The Parkland Dedication amendment was sent to the parks 

Commission on November 2, 2020 and was recommended for approval. On November 10, 2020 City Council approved 

the amended Parkland Dedication amendment.   

77

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
Figure 3: Approved parkland for Lot 7 

 

The applicant also applied for a partial vacation in order to modify the Open Space and Drainage restriction. A Plat 

Vacation application requires signatures from all property owners within the Original Subdivision (Parten Ranch Phase 2 

Final Plat) [Section 9.2 of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.] The applicant provided the plat vacation with all owner 

signatures [Exhibit 4].  

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located 1.5 miles southwest of the intersection of Nutty Brown Road and FM 1826.  

 

Current Condition of Lot:  

The lots are currently undeveloped.  

 

Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Partial Plat Vacation and Replat of Lots 6 and 7 of the Parten Ranch 

Phase 2 Subdivision. 

 

 

Public Notification 

 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the application. To date, no letters for or against the request have been received. 

 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 – Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Recorded Final Plat for Parten Ranch Phase 2  

Exhibit 3 – Proposed Partial Vacation and Replat of Lots 6 and 7  

Exhibit 4 – Plat Vacation document  

Exhibit 5 – Approved Parkland Dedication 

78

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Recommended Action: Approve the Replat with a Vacation 

Alternatives/Options: N/A 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

79

Item 6.



80

Item 6.



81

Item 6.



82

Item 6.



83

Item 6.



84

Item 6.



85

Item 6.



86

Item 6.



87

Item 6.



88

Item 6.



89

Item 6.



90

Item 6.



91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.



97

Item 6.



98

Item 6.



99

Item 6.



100

Item 6.



101

Item 6.



102

Item 6.



103

Item 6.



104

Item 6.



105

Item 6.



106

Item 6.



107

Item 6.



108

Item 6.



109

Item 6.



110

Item 6.



111

Item 6.



112

Item 6.



113

Item 6.



114

Item 6.



115

Item 6.



116

Item 6.



117

Item 6.



118

Item 6.



119

Item 6.



120

Item 6.



121

Item 6.



122

Item 6.



123

Item 6.



124

Item 6.



125

Item 6.



126

Item 6.



127

Item 6.



128

Item 6.



129

Item 6.



130

Item 6.



131

Item 6.



132

Item 6.



133

Item 6.



134

Item 6.



135

Item 6.



136

Item 6.



137

Item 6.



138

Item 6.



139

Item 6.



140

Item 6.



141

Item 6.



142

Item 6.



143

Item 6.



144

Item 6.



145

Item 6.



146

Item 6.



147

Item 6.



148

Item 6.



149

Item 6.



150

Item 6.



151

Item 6.



152

Item 6.



153

Item 6.



154

Item 6.



155

Item 6.



156

Item 6.



157

Item 6.



158

Item 6.



159

Item 6.



160

Item 6.



161

Item 6.



162

Item 6.



163

Item 6.



164

Item 6.



165

Item 6.



166

Item 6.



167

Item 6.



 

THE STATE OF TEXAS    §  

  

COUNTY OF HAYS    §  

  

  

PARTIAL VACATION OF SUBDIVISION, TO WIT: VACATION OF 

LOTS 6 & 7, BLOCK A OF THE PARTEN RANCH PHASE 2 

SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 19033165 OF THE 

HAYS COUNTY PLAT RECORDS IN HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

  

  

WHEREAS, HM Parten Ranch Development, Inc., Owner of approximately 2.040 acres of land, 

more or less, and being part of Lots 6 and 7, Block A of the Parten Ranch Phase 2 

subdivision, recorded in document 19033165 of the plat records of Hays County, 

Texas being a portion of a called 531.542 acre tract of land conveyed by special 

warranty deed with vendor’s line in document 2016-16004247 of the official 

records of Hays County, Texas; and  

  

WHEREAS, on the _____th day of ______________ 2020, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas, at its regular meeting, 

approved the vacation of Lots 6 and 7, Block A of the Parten Ranch Phase 2 

subdivision, recorded in document 19033165 of the plat records of Hays County 

upon application thereof by the Owners of all land covered thereby; and   

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Dripping Springs, 

Texas does by these presents hereby declare that:  

  

The above recitals are true and correct and that Lots 6 and 7, Block A of the Parten Ranch Phase 

2 subdivision, recorded in document 19033165 of the plat records of Hays County, are to be 

partially vacated and replatted as shown in Instrument Number ____________ of the Plat Records 

of Hays County.  

  

EXECUTED THIS, the _____ day of ____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

168

Item 6.



169

Item 6.



170

Item 6.



171

Item 6.



172

Item 6.



173

Item 6.



 
 
 
 
November 11, 2020 
 
Daniel Ryan  
LJA Engineering  
7500 Rialto Blvd., Building II, Suite 100 
Austin, Texas 78735 
dryan@lja.com  

RE:  City Council Approval Issues November 10, 2020  
 Application for Parkland Dedication  
 Location: Parten Ranch Development  
 
 

The City of Dripping Springs City Council met on November 10th and approved your proposed 

Parkland Dedication Amendment for the Parten Ranch Subdivisions Master Open Space and 

Parks Plan. This vote passed 4-0 in November 10th on the consent agenda.  
 
 
Best Regards,  
Amanda Padilla, City of Dripping Springs Senior Planner 

174

Item 6.



PARTEN RANCH
EXHIBIT 1 - OPEN SPACE AND MASTER PARK PLAN 

  OCTOBER 26, 2020

F M
   1

 8 2 6

PHARIS DESIGN
PL ANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHITE CTURE

0 150 300 600 1200
SCALE 1”=300’

LEGEND

Public Buffer Open Space

The Dedicated Parkland Acreage Requirement for this project 
 is 23 Acres.

* The 100 Year Flood Plain area is included in the 133 Acres of
Public Buffer Open Space.

Public Irrigation Field Open Space

Publicly Accessible Open Space

Amenity Center

100 Year Flood Plain

Phasing Lines

6’ Mulch Trail  (9,612 LF)

6’ Asphalt or DG Trail (11,770 LF)

Property Line

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE ACRES

Public Buffer Open Space 149
Public Irrigation Field Open Space 46
Publicly Accessible Open Space 108

Total 303

PRIVATE OPEN SPACE ACRES

Amenity Center 6

Total 6

Total Parkland and Open Space 309

PUA 
SITE

FOX RUN 
STATES

OAK RIDGE PARK
SECTION 2

P
O

O
L

K
I

N
I

C
I

N
N

I
K

W I L D  R O S E  D R

R
E

V
E

 G
 R

 E
 E

 N
C

 O
 V

 E

R
D

N
U

R
X

O
F

G R
 E

 E
 N

  H
 I 

L L
  L

 O
 O

 P

F I E L D S T O N E

P
O

O
L

K
I

N
I

C
I

N
N

I
K

OAK RIDGE PARK
SECTION 2

OAK RIDGE PARK
SECTION 3

OAK RIDGE PARK
SECTION 1

WHISPERING OAKS
PHASE II

HIGH POINTE 
PHASE III

FIELDSTONE
SUBDIVISION

PHASE 7

PHASE 8

PHASE 4

PHASE 6

PHASE 5

PHASE 3

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

175

Item 6.



176

Item 6.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
November 18, 2020 

Project No:  CUP2020-0009 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 101 Woods Loop Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Property Location: 101 Woods Loop, Driftwood, Texas 78619 

Legal Description: THE WOODS LOT 23 3.08 AC GEO#90406493 

Applicant: Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting 

Property Owner: Whitenight, Evan K & Sarah 

Request: Conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling structure 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with the conditions outlined in the staff report. 

177

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a 1,749 square foot accessory dwelling to be located 

at 101 Woods Loop, Driftwood, TX 78619. The Property is located within the Single-Family Residential District- Low 

Density (SF-1) zoning district. Accessory dwellings are permitted in SF-1 zoning districts with an approved Conditional 

Use Permit. A conditional use is a land use that is compatible with the permitted land uses in a given zoning district only 

under certain conditions. Such conditions include a determination that the external effects of the conditional use in 

relation to the existing and planned uses of adjoining property and the neighborhood can be mitigated through imposition 

of additional standards and conditions 

Accessory Dwelling is defined as a secondary living space that is on-site with a primary living space and that may be 

contained within the space structure as the primary or may be contained in a separate structure. Occupants of secondary 

living spaces typically include a caretaker, servant, or farm worker employed by the owner/occupant, or a guest or family 

member of the owner/occupant 

Single- Family Residential– Low Density (SF-1) zoning district is intended to provide for development of low density, 

detached, single- family residences on lots of at least one (1) acres in size. This accessory dwelling unit would be placed 

in The Woods Subdivision where the smallest lot is just over one (1) acre. The Woods subdivision was established in the 

1980s.The subdivision is the southernmost subdivision in the City Limits and is adjacent to the City’s Park, Charro Ranch 

Park.  

The City’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan outlines Livability/ Quality of Life as a topic of the comprehensive plan. A Goal of 

the Comprehensive plan that falls under that topic is for the City to support housing options within the City. Below is the 

section of the Comprehensive Plan that clearly outlines how Accessory Dwelling Units can be another opportunity for 

housing diversity. 

“Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are another opportunity to incorporate lower cost housing options into the 

existing fabric of the community. These units provide an option for older residents who want to downsize but 

remain in Dripping Springs or young couples just starting out. They also provide an option for homeowners who 

may want or need extra income, allowing them to remain in their homes by providing supplemental income. It 

will be important to explore best practices from other communities and establish a policy that reflects the values 

of Dripping Springs and protects neighborhood integrity for existing residents.”  

The accessory dwelling will be located at the southwest corner of the lot, adjacent to Farm to Market 150 [See Exhibit 2]. 

It is currently not visible from FM 150 but abuts right-of-way. The accessory dwelling is a three (3) bedroom ranch house 

with two (2) bathrooms, and one (1) car garage. 1,292 square feet of the structure is habitable space. The accessory 

dwelling will need to comply with the setbacks required in SF-1 zoning district, see below table 1.  

 Code requirement Code Met? 

Front Twenty-five feet (25') Yes 

Rear Twenty-five feet (25') Yes, setback 155 feet 

Side 

Total of forty (40) feet combining 

both side yards with a minimum of 

fifteen feet (15') on either side. 

Yes, setback 50 feet 

Setback for Garage 

Side-Entry Garages: Single-family 

homes with side-entry garages 

where lot frontage is only to one 

street (not a corner lot) shall have a 

minimum of twenty-five feet (25') 

from the door face of the garage or 

carport to the side property line for 

maneuvering. 

Yes 

   

Height  Accessory Building(s): Maximum Yes, the ADU will be 19 feet at 

178

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

twenty-five feet (25') for other 

accessory buildings, including a 

detached garage or accessory 

dwelling units. 

the max ridge height. 

Impervious Cover Thirty Percent (30%) Yes, 7.39% 
Table 1 Code requirements 

The applicant will need to provide two parking spaces for the accessory dwelling unit per section 5.6.1 of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

(a)     Single-Family Residential including SF-1, SF-2, SF-3 and SF-4: 2 per dwelling unit. 

 

The Accessory Dwelling Unit will have separate utilities from the Main Residential Building. Utilities are below: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation (DSWSC). DSWSC has already tapped the 6” main and 

installed a new meter for service and placed the meter in the same easement for ease of service and reporting.   

Wastewater:  OSSF. The applicant has contracted and done a septic engineering study. The proposed placement 

of the new wastewater septic is also noted on the attached survey.  A permit from the City will be required. 

Electricity: PEC has already set a new pole and transformer and run power to a power pole and meter in the 

easement. 

The applicant stated that the utilities are separately connected due to cost, environmental concerns, and to keep them all in 

an existing easement. 

It is important to note that the applicant had already begun construction of the accessory dwelling unit and a code 

enforcement notice of violation has been issued due to the lack of a CUP. If the requested CUP is not granted the ADU 

must be removed.   

Surrounding Properties 

179

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below: 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) /ETJ 
 Single family residential 

Not Applicable, 

Outside of 

Comprehensive Plan  

East 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) /ETJ 

Single family residential/ 

Undeveloped 

South ETJ 
Single Family Residential / 

Undeveloped 

West 

Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 

/Public Park or Preserve 

(PP) 

Single Family Residential / 

Charro Ranch Park (City 

Park) 

 

In 2017 the City received two conditional use permits for properties located in the Woods subdivision for accessory 

dwelling units. There is a total of 40 lots in the Woods Subdivision. Majority of the Lots within the Subdivision have 

accessory structures and including some which are accessory dwelling units. The feel of the subdivision is a low-density 

rural neighborhood with gravel driveways and open yards.  

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Compressive Plan addresses accessory dwelling units 

in the Comprehensive Plan Goal 3.1. ADUs are an option 

for supporting housing options in Dripping Springs. 

180

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential 

District – Low Density (SF-1). Accessory dwelling units 

are a listed conditional use in this zoning district. 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

Based on the concept plan the proposed use meets all the 

development standards established in the section 5. The 

structure will be reevaluated at the building permit stage.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

The applicant will be utilizing an existing gravel 

driveway and replacing it with a concrete driveway.   

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The accessory dwelling unit will have adequate parking. 

One space in the garage and the other in the driveway.  

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

The City's solid waste service will be alerted, and an 

additional trash can will be delivered upon completion of 

the ADU and will be picked up with the existing trash 

and recycle can from the main dwelling 

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

See staff report 

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

The ADU is set 50’ off the south build line and 155’ off 

of the west build line. No trees have been removed from 

the property at all to maintain adequate 

cover and buffer from the main dwelling structure and 

any neighboring properties or easements 

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

N/A 

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

The applicant plans to have three exterior lights, two in 

the front and one on the back patio. The back patio will 

be recessed in the ceiling of the patio and will be facing 

down. The ones in the front will be “hat” style to match 

the existing dwelling which comply with the dark sky 

requirements based on the lighting compliance 

application. 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The ADU will have access to the open space and yard of 

the main dwelling per the attached survey 

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

See attached ADU plan document, the height of the 

structure is noted on the plans and is 17’ top of ridge 

height per build plan and with the foundation will be 19’ 

total in building height which is under the restrictions of 

25’ for an ADU on SF- 1. The size of the structure in 

terms of sq ft and dimensions is also called out in 

181

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

this attachment. 

j. Hours of operation; 

 

N/A 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

See the ADU plan attachment, the architectural 

renderings have been provided. The exterior will be hardy 

siding board and batten to match the main dwelling 

exactly along with exact matching colors and will also 

feature the same stone accent work on the front of the 

ADU as the main dwelling has. 

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

N/A 

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

N/A 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

The proposed use is not materially detrimental to the 

public safety, convenience and welfare, or results in 

material damage or prejudice to other properties in the 

vicinity.  

6. Noise; N/A 

7. Odors; and N/A 

8. Dust. N/A 

 

Summary 

Based on the proposed land use, compatibility with surrounding properties, the Comprehensive Plan, and support from 

adjacent neighbors’ staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with the following conditions: 

1. No more than two driveways permitted on the lot. 

2. The ADU shall be connected to an approved on-site septic system prior to occupancy. 

 

The below is an excerpt of the Code for the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a)     P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be assured 

at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing uses or 

with other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

November 18, 2020 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

December 8, 2020 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1: Conditional Use Permit Application 
182

Item 7.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Exhibit 2: Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans 

Exhibit 3: Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant) 

Exhibit 4: The Woods Subdivision 

Exhibit 5: Letter of Support from neighbors 

Exhibit 6: Deed 

Exhibit 7: Impervious cover sheet 

Exhibit 8: Notice of Violation 

Exhibit 9: Draft Conditional Use Permit Ordinance 

 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no or alternate conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: No comments have been received. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Livability / Quality of Life 

Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

 

183

Item 7.



CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 
PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •   MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

• 512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 1 of 4 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________ 

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY _______________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________ 

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

☐ NEW APPLICATION ☐ EXTENSION OF A PREVIOUSLY APPROVED CUP

Evan and Sarah Whitenight

101 Woods Loop

Driftwood TX 78619

512-971-4991 evan.whitenight@yahoo.com

Jon Thompson

J Thompson Professional Consulting

PO Box 172

Dripping Springs Texas 78620

(512) 568-2184 jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

184

Item 7.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 4 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? * 
(See attached agreement). 

☐ YES (REQUIRED)* ☐ YES (VOLUNTARY)* ☐ NO*

* If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a
condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for more information).

PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS  

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID#  

LOCATED IN ☐ CITY LIMITS

☐ EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION

CURRENT ZONING 

PROPOSED USE 

REASON FOR REQUEST 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

Evan and Sarah Whitenight
101 Woods Loop, Driftwood TX 78619
THE WOODS LOT 23 3.08 AC GEO#90406493
R53175

SF-1

Accessory Dwelling Unit
Accessory structure to be used as a home office, guest space and 
storage space
Proposed future use for lodging and family care of an elderly 
family member

185

Item 7.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 4 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE 

The undersigned, hereby confirms that he/she/it is the owner of the above described real property and 
further, that ______________________________ is authorized to act as my agent and representative with 
respect to this Application and the City’s zoning amendment process.  
(As recorded in the Hays County Property Deed Records, Vol. ______, Pg. ________.) 

_____________________________________ 
Name 

_____________________________________ 
Title 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HAYS § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ______________, 

201___ by _____________________________________. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

My Commission Expires: _____________________________ 

__________________________________ 
Name of Applicant 

Jon Thompson

Instrument # 2001384

Jon Thompson

186

Item 7.

jthompson
Highlight



187

Item 7.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 4 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL 

 CHECKLIST 
STAFF APPLICANT 

☐ ☐ Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized 

☐ ☐

PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents   

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what 
digital contents are included. 

☐ ☐ Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 
☐ ☐ Billing Contact Form 

☐ ☐
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement - signed with attached 
photos/drawings (required if marked “Yes (Required)” on above Lighting 
Ordinance Section of application) 

☐ ☐ Legal Description 
☐ ☐ Plans 
☐ ☐ Maps/Site Plan/Plat 
☐ ☐ Architectural Elevation (if applicable) 
☐ ☐ Explanation for request (attach extra sheets if necessary) 
☐ ☐ Public Notice Sign (refer to Fee Schedule) 

Proof of Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed 

All required items and information (including all applicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by 
the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. 
By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and met the above requirements for a complete 
submittal: 

Applicant Signature Date 
October 4, 2020

X

X

X
X

X

X

X
X
X

X Floor plan

w/ floor planX
X

188

Item 7.



PATIO

SHED

18’55’

155’
50’

CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

AC
CE

SS
O

RY
 B

U
IL

DI
N

G

20’

PROPOSED SEPTIC 
TANK AND FIELD

189

Item 7.



9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans

https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 1/6

 

3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling

 

Plan 51815H

View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ

| Need Help?
800-854-7852

| Plan
51815H190

Item 7.



9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans

https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 4/6

 

 

Plan 51815H

View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ

| Need Help?
800-854-7852

| Plan
51815H191

Item 7.



9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans

https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 5/6

 

Plan Details

Square Footage Breakdown

Total Heated Area:
1,292 sq. ft.

1st Floor:
1,292 sq. ft.

Porch, Rear:
89 sq. ft.

Porch, Front:
68 sq. ft.

Beds/Baths

Bedrooms:
3

Full bathrooms:
2

Foundation Type

Standard
Foundations:
Crawl,
Slab

Optional
Foundations:
Basement,
Walkout

Exterior Walls

Standard Type(s):
2x4

Optional Type(s):
2x6

 

Plan 51815H

View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ

| Need Help?
800-854-7852

| Plan
51815H192

Item 7.



9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans

https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 6/6

 

Dimensions

Width:
29' 6"

Depth:
59' 10"

Max ridge height:
17' 0"

Garage

Type:
Attached

Area:
300 sq. ft.

Count:
1 Cars

Entry Location:
Front

Ceiling Heights

Floor / Height:
First Floor / 8' 0"

Roof

Framing Type:
Stick

 

Plan 51815H

View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ

| Need Help?
800-854-7852

| Plan
51815H193

Item 7.



From: Jon Thompson
To: Amanda Padilla
Cc: Evan Whitenight
Subject: Response to questions for the CUP at 101 Woods Loop
Date: Thursday, October 22, 2020 8:55:29 PM
Attachments: Impervious Cover Worksheet for 101 Woods Loop.xlsx

101 Woods Loop Accessory Structure Elevation and Plans.pdf
New Survey.pdf

Amanda,
Please find the responses to the questions you asked below in regard to the CUP

First list of questions:

1. Utilities - power and water are already in place and have been set in the easement
noted on the attached survey on the southeast corner of the property.  PEC has already
set a new pole and transformer and run power to a power pole and meter in the
easement.  Dripping Springs Water Company has already tapped the 6” main and
installed a new meter for service and placed the meter in the same easement for ease
of service and reporting.  We have also contracted and done a septic engineering
study and the proposed placement of the new wastewater septic is also noted on the
attached survey.

2. Attached is the impervious cover worksheet we have done which includes the existing
cover as well as the new cover.  Based on our calculations and the lot size of 3.08ac
our projected impervious cover is 7.39%

3. The driveway to the new structure is not existing and is in the plan for the impervious
cover restrictions as it will be stained concrete to match the existing main dwelling. 

Second list:

1. Adequate ingress and egress to property and proposed structures thereon with
particular reference to vehicular and pedestrian safety and convenience, and access in
case of fire;

On the attached survey there is an existing driveway that will be purposed for
the ingress and egress of the proposed ADU which will provide the same
accessibility as the main dwelling and accessibility that already exists on
Woods Loop from before we acquired the property.

2. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, and pavement type;
On the attached survey there is the new driveway that is called out that will
accommodate off street parking on the site as well as an attached 13’8” x 21’
single car garage included in the structure

3. Refuse and service areas;
The City's solid waste franchisee will be alerted and an additional trash can will
be delivered upon completion of the ADU and will be picked up with the
existing trash and recycle can from the main dwelling

4. Utilities with reference to location, availability, and compatibility;
See number 1 above

5. Screening and buffering, features to minimize visual impacts, and/or setbacks from
adjacent uses;

The ADU is set 50’ off of the south build line and 155’ off of the west build
line.  No trees have been removed from the property at all to maintain adequate

194

Item 7.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:evan.whitenight@yahoo.com

Sheet1

		IMPERVIOUS COVER CALCULATION SHEET

		Total Lot Size		3.08 ac		134,164.80

		Description		SQ/FT

		Main Area Exisiting Home		3220

		Covered Porch		342

		Covered Porch		74

		Detached Garage		1864

		Front Driveway		596

		Detached Patio		384

		ADU Residence Main Area		1292

		ADU Residence Front Porch		68

		ADU Residence Back Porch		89

		Proposed new driveway		1992

		Total		9921

		Impervious Cover with new structures		7.39%








9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans


https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 1/6


 


3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling


 


Plan 51815H


View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ


| Need Help?
800-854-7852


| Plan
51815H







9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans


https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 4/6


 


 


Plan 51815H


View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ


| Need Help?
800-854-7852


| Plan
51815H







9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans


https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 5/6


 


Plan Details


Square Footage Breakdown


Total Heated Area:
1,292 sq. ft.


1st Floor:
1,292 sq. ft.


Porch, Rear:
89 sq. ft.


Porch, Front:
68 sq. ft.


Beds/Baths


Bedrooms:
3


Full bathrooms:
2


Foundation Type


Standard
Foundations:
Crawl,
Slab


Optional
Foundations:
Basement,
Walkout


Exterior Walls


Standard Type(s):
2x4


Optional Type(s):
2x6


 


Plan 51815H


View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ


| Need Help?
800-854-7852


| Plan
51815H







9/28/2020 3-Bed Ranch House Plan with Vaulted Ceiling - 51815HZ | Architectural Designs - House Plans


https://www.architecturaldesigns.com/house-plans/3-bed-ranch-house-plan-with-vaulted-ceiling-51815hz 6/6


 


Dimensions


Width:
29' 6"


Depth:
59' 10"


Max ridge height:
17' 0"


Garage


Type:
Attached


Area:
300 sq. ft.


Count:
1 Cars


Entry Location:
Front


Ceiling Heights


Floor / Height:
First Floor / 8' 0"


Roof


Framing Type:
Stick


 


Plan 51815H


View this and more for this plan by visiting
www.architechtecturaldesigns.com/51815HZ


| Need Help?
800-854-7852


| Plan
51815H








PATIO


SHED


18’55’


155’
50’


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


AC
CE


SS
O


RY
 B


U
IL


DI
N


G


20’


PROPOSED SEPTIC 
TANK AND FIELD







cover and buffer from the main dwelling structure and any neighboring
properties or easements

6. Control of exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffic safety, economic effect,
and compatibility and harmony with properties in the district;

We plan on only having three exterior lights, two in the front and one on the
back patio.  The back patio will be recessed in the ceiling of the patio and will
be facing down.  The ones in the front will be “hat” style to match the existing
dwelling which comply with the dark sky requirements based on the lighting
compliance application we have signed along with our CUP.

7. Required yards and open space;
The ADU will have access to the open space and yard of the main dwelling per
the attached survey

8.  Height and bulk of structures;
See attached ADU plan document, the height of the structure is noted on page 4
and is 17’ top of ridge height per build plan and with the foundation will be 19’
total in building height which is under the restrictions of 25’ for an ADU on
SF-1.  The size of the structure in terms of sq ft and dimensions is also called
out in this attachment.

9.  Exterior construction material, building design, and building facade treatment;
See the ADU plan attachment, on page 1 is the architectural rendering of the
front elevation.  The exterior will be Hardy siding board and batten to match
the main dwelling exactly along with exact matching colors and will also
feature the same stone accent work on the front of the ADU as the main
dwelling has.  

10. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions
to control traffic flow or divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or eliminate
development-generated traffic on neighborhood streets; and

No existing roadway adjustments are needed as prior to purchase of the
property a gate and a driveway existed on the property as noted on the survey
from the previous owners and the city.  We will be utilizing this as the means of
ingress and egress per number 1 above.

Jon Thompson
J Thompson Professional Consulting
PO Box 172
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620
(512) 568-2184
jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

195

Item 7.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com


196

Item 7.



197

Item 7.



198

Item 7.



199

Item 7.



200

Item 7.



201

Item 7.



202

Item 7.



203

Item 7.



204

Item 7.



IMPERVIOUS COVER CALCULATION SHEET

Total Lot Size 3.08 ac 134,164.80

Description SQ/FT

Main Area Exisiting Home 3220

Covered Porch 342

Covered Porch 74

Detached Garage 1864

Front Driveway 596

Detached Patio 384

ADU Residence Main Area 1292

ADU Residence Front Porch 68

ADU Residence Back Porch 89

Proposed new driveway 1992

Total 9921

Impervious Cover with new structures 7.39%

205

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

Notice of Violation 
  

DATE ISSUED:  September 29th, 2020 

 

NAME & ADDRESS OF VIOLATOR: Whitenight, Evan K & Sarah 

 101 Woods Loop 

 Driftwood, TX 78619 

 

LOCATION OF SITE: 101 Woods Loop  

Driftwood, Hays County, Texas  

Property ID:  R53175 

 

NOTICE ISSUED BY: Sarah Cole 

 Building Official 

Phone: 512-858-4725  

 

 

CEASE & DESIST:   You are hereby ordered to cease and desist from the violation cited below, 

and to stop work on the above-described property until authorized by the City 

in writing to recommence and proceed with the work. 

 

VIOLATIONS: Development on land, tract, parcel, or lot within the City limits without the 

proper permit obtained from the City. 

 

VIOLATION NOTICE:  You are in violation of the City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances:  

Volume II, Chapter 24, Section 24.02.063 Permit Required. 

 

ACTION REQUIRED:  Please submit a completed building permit application to the City of 

Dripping Springs.  Feel free to contact my office at the City of Dripping 

Springs for assistance in this matter.  By cooperating with the City, you 

can bring your property in compliance with the law and avoid your case 

being taken to court. 

 

FAILURE TO ACT:  Failure to remedy the violations stated in this notice shall result in the 

filing of criminal charges and/or the filing of a civil lawsuit.  

  

 

206

Item 7.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

ORDINANCE No. _______ 

Conditional Use Permit 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR THE USE OF ACCESSORY DWELLING 

WITHIN THE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - LOW 

DENSITY (SF-1) ZONING DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 101 WOODS LOOP, DRIFTWOOD, TX 78619   

UNDER EXHIBIT A, ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 3.17, 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AS ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT 

“A”; AND PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS 

OF FACT; ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

PUBLICATION; EFFECTIVE DATE; PROPER NOTICE & 

MEETING. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to promote 

reasonable, sound, and efficient land use and development within the City of 

Dripping Springs (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has the 

authority to regulate zoning within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Dripping Springs desires to approve a conditional use permit because of 

the unique nature of this property, and the land use is compatible with the permitted 

land uses in a given zoning district only under current conditions; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has general 

authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the good government, 

peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power 

granted by law to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good government, peace 

or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of fact as 

expressly set forth herein. 

 

207

Item 7.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 2 of 4 

2. ENACTMENT 

The Conditional Use Permit is approved as presented in Exhibit “A” to this ordinance. 

3. REPEALER 

All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, herein.  

4. SEVERABILITY 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 

invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 

jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of 

this Ordinance. 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance and Conditional Use Permit shall be effective immediately upon passage and 

publication. 

6. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 

was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas 

Government Code, Chapter 551. 

PASSED & APPROVED this, the ___ day of ____________ 2020, by a vote of ___(ayes) to 

____ (nays) to ___ (abstentions) of the City Council of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

  

by:       

   Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

      

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

208

Item 7.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 3 of 4 

Attachment “A” 

 
City of Dripping Springs | Conditional Use Permit 

 
Granted to allow the land use of “Accessory Dwelling” on a property that is currently zoned Single-

Family Residential - Low Density (SF-1) District located at:   
 

101 Woods Loop, Driftwood, Texas, 78619 
Approved by the City of Dripping Springs City Council on _______ 

 
The use of a Accessory dwelling at the above-mentioned location is allowed pursuant to the following 
regulations: 

 
1. No more than two driveways permitted on the lot. 

2. The ADU shall be connected to an approved on-site septic system prior to occupancy. 

3. Conditional Use Permits for new uses/structures shall be deemed to have expired and shall 

become null and void if construction is not completed and occupation commenced within two 

years of the date the CUP was approved. 

4. City Administrator may revoke the CUP for failure to comply with municipal regulations and the 

conditions placed on the use (City of Dripping Springs Zoning Ordinance Section 3.17.9). 

5. Conditional Use Permit is effective on _____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

209

Item 7.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 4 of 4 

Attachment “B” 

Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans 
 

 

 

210

Item 7.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
November 18, 2020 

Project No:  CUP2020-0010 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 693 Blue Ridge Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Property Location: 693 Blue Ridge, Dripping Springs, Texas 78619 

Legal Description: 
COUNTS ESTATES PHASE TWO (AKA BUTLER RANCH ESTATES), BLOCK 

C, Lot 4, ACRES 1.6452 

Applicant: Josh Haro, Haro Homes, LLC 

Property Owner: Adrianne Golias and Karleen Watson 

Request: Conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling structure 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with the conditions outlined in the staff report 

211

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow an 1059 square foot accessory dwelling to be located 

at 693 Blue Ridge, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620. The Property is located within the Single-Family Residential District- 

Low Density (SF-1) zoning district. Accessory dwellings are permitted in SF-1 zoning districts with an approved 

Conditional Use Permit. A conditional use is a land use that is compatible with the permitted land uses in a given zoning 

district only under certain conditions. Such conditions include a determination that the external effects of the conditional 

use in relation to the existing and planned uses of adjoining property and the neighborhood can be mitigated through 

imposition of additional standards and conditions 

Accessory Dwelling is defined as a secondary living space that is on-site with a primary living space and that may be 

contained within the space structure as the primary or may be contained in a separate structure. Occupants of secondary 

living spaces typically include a caretaker, servant, or farm worker employed by the owner/occupant, or a guest or family 

member of the owner/occupant 

Single- Family Residential– Low Density (SF-1) zoning district is intended to provide for development of low density, 

detached, single- family residences on lots of at least one (1) acres in size. This accessory dwelling unit would be placed 

in Counts Estates Phase 2 Subdivision where the lots vary in size. Counts Estates Phase 2 subdivision was established in 

2014.The subdivision is east of Ranch Road 12 and south of US Highway 290. 

The City’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan outlines Livability/ Quality of Life as a topic of the comprehensive plan. A Goal of 

the Comprehensive plan that falls under that topic is for the City to support housing options within the City. Below is the 

section of the Comprehensive Plan that clearly outlines how Accessory Dwelling Units can be another opportunity for 

housing diversity. 

“Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are another opportunity to incorporate lower cost housing options into the 

existing fabric of the community. These units provide an option for older residents who want to downsize but 

remain in Dripping Springs or young couples just starting out. They also provide an option for homeowners who 

may want or need extra income, allowing them to remain in their homes by providing supplemental income. It 

will be important to explore best practices from other communities and establish a policy that reflects the values 

of Dripping Springs and protects neighborhood integrity for existing residents.”  

The accessory dwelling will be located north on the lot, adjacent to Lloyd Lane [See Exhibit 2]. The structure would be 

visible from Lloyd Ln. The accessory dwelling unit is a two (2) bedroom, one (1) bath, and one (1) car garage. The 

accessory structures habitable area is 863 sf. This is intended to be a mother-in-law suite that has been approved through 

the community’s homeowner’s association (HOA). The structure will have its own mailing address (Unit B) for 911 

purposes, this was a requirement through the HOA. The accessory dwelling will need to comply with the setbacks 

required in SF-1 zoning district, see below table 1.  

 Code requirement Code Met? 

Front Twenty-five feet (25') Yes, 209.7 feet 

Rear Twenty-five feet (25') Yes 

Side 

Total of forty (40) feet combining 

both side yards with a minimum of 

fifteen feet (15') on either side. 

Yes, setback 106 feet from side 

facing Lloyd Ln and 25 feet 

from other side 

Setback for Garage 

Side-Entry Garages: Single-family 

homes with side-entry garages 

where lot frontage is only to one 

street (not a corner lot) shall have a 

minimum of twenty-five feet (25') 

from the door face of the garage or 

carport to the side property line for 

maneuvering. 

N/A, Garage is not side entry 

Height  Accessory Building(s): Maximum Height is 13 feet 10 inches.  

212

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

twenty-five feet (25') for other 

accessory buildings, including a 

detached garage or accessory 

dwelling units. 

Impervious Cover 
Thirty Percent (30%) Yes, they are under the 

impervious cover 
Table 1 Code requirements 

The applicant will need to provide two parking spaces for the accessory dwelling unit per section 5.6.1 of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

(a)     Single-Family Residential including SF-1, SF-2, SF-3 and SF-4: 2 per dwelling unit. 

 

The Accessory Dwelling Unit will connect into utilities from the Main Residential Building. Utilities are below: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation (DSWSC). The structure will connect into existing 1” Water 

Line on Main House.  

Wastewater:  OSSF. Existing house on property has septic system that has been reviewed by Paul Sawyer’s 

Engineer and cleared to tie into existing. No new septic system will be needed. 

Electricity: PEC 

It is important to note that the applicant had already begun construction of the accessory dwelling unit and a code 

enforcement notice of violation has been issued due to the lack of a CUP. If the requested CUP is not granted the ADU 

must be removed.   

Surrounding Properties 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

213

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
table below: 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) /ETJ 
 Single family residential 

Not Applicable, 

Outside of 

Comprehensive Plan  

East 

Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 

/Single-Family Residential 

– Moderate Density (SF-2) 

Single family residential 

South 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 
Single Family Residential  

West 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1)  
Single Family Residential  

 

The feel of the subdivision is a low to moderate dense rural neighborhood with open yards. The neighborhood has very 

little fencing. The applicant does not intend to place a fence.  

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Compressive Plan addresses accessory dwelling units 

in the Comprehensive Plan Goal 3.1. ADUs are an option 

for supporting housing options in Dripping Springs. 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential 

District – Low Density (SF-1). Accessory dwelling units 

are a listed conditional use in this zoning district. 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

Based on the concept plan the proposed use meets all the 

development standards established in the section 5. The 

structure will be reevaluated at the building permit stage.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

The applicant will be utilizing the existing driveway 

already in place for main structure and extending the 

driveway with crushed granite.  

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The accessory dwelling unit will have adequate parking. 

One space in the garage and the other in the driveway.  

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

The City's solid waste service will need to be alerted. 

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

See staff report 

e. Screening and buffering, features to There will be no new permanent fencing with this 
214

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

additional structure and there is no current permanent 

fencing – it is all open space. 

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

N/A 

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

Lighting for the new structure will match the current 

house structure in accordance with city codes. 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The ADU will have access to the open space and yard of 

the main dwelling per the attached survey 

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

 

j. Hours of operation; 

 

N/A 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

The new structure is required and has already been 

approved by the HOA to match all existing exterior 

materials to the main house. 

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

N/A 

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

N/A 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

The use is not materially detrimental to the public health, 

safety, convenience and welfare, or results in material 

damage or prejudice to other property in the vicinity. 

6. Noise; N/A 

7. Odors; and N/A 

8. Dust. N/A 

 

Summary 

Based on the proposed land use, compatibility with surrounding properties, and the Comprehensive Plan, staff 

recommends approval of the requested CUP with the following conditions: 

1. No driveway permitted off Lloyd Drive 

2. The ADU shall be connected to a City approved on-site septic system prior to occupancy. 

 

The below is an excerpt of the Code for the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a)     P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be assured 

at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing uses or 

with other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

215

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

November 18, 2020 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

December 8, 2020 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Exhibit 2- Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans 

Exhibit 3- Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant) 

Exhibit 4- Notice of Violation 

Exhibit 5- Draft Conditional Use Permit Ordinance 

 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no or alternate conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: None at this time 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Livability / Quality of Life 

Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

 

216

Item 8.



217

Item 8.



218

Item 8.



219

Item 8.



220

Item 8.



10/02/2019

J.J.F.

OF

69
3 

B
LU

E
 R

ID
G

E
 D

R
IV

E
 W

A
T

E
R

 T
A

P
 P

LA
N

69
3 

B
LU

E
 R

ID
G

E
 D

R
IV

E
D

R
IP

P
IN

G
 S

P
R

IN
G

S
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
86

20

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
/C

O
R

R
E

C
T

IO
N

B
Y

D
A

T
E

DATE:

FILE:

DRAWN:

SHEET

1

693 BLUE RIDGE 

10-02-19

12
00

0 
M

A
N

C
H

A
C

A
 R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 C

A
U

S
T

IN
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
87

48
(5

12
) 

36
8-

52
51

 T
E

L.
F

-1
65

04

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
&

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 P
LL

C

S
E

R
V

A
N

T
1

R
O

T
A

T
E

 H
O

U
S

E
. D

E
LE

T
E

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

S
IT

E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
 P

LA
N

1

DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS 78620

693 BLUE RIDGE DRIVE SITE LAYOUT PLAN
693 BLUE RIDGE DR.

VICINITY MAP

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OWNER
ADRIANNE & BRANDY GOLIAS
693 BLUE RIDGE DRIVE
DRIPPING SPRINGS, TX 78620

221

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d37'48" E   155.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d22'12" W   164.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
154.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND CAPPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L., W.Q.E. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND CAPPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT IN CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' E.T.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH B.L., W.Q.E. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.6452 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND CAPPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT IN CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 45%%d36'05" E   99.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d37'48" W   505.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' H.&B.T.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.L., W.Q.E. & D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT IN CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(  )

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR CONDITIONER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
x99.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTE WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLOYD LANE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. GUEST HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE RIDGE DRIVE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4, BLOCK C, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE 2, A SUBDIVISION IN HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN VOLUME 18, PAGE 2, PLAT RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUEST HOUSE LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: 1. OWNER/CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN PERMIT FROM HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(EXISTING TO REMAIN) 693 BLUE RIDGE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' CONC. DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE



222

Item 8.



223

Item 8.



224

Item 8.



225

Item 8.



226

Item 8.



227

Item 8.



228

Item 8.



229

Item 8.



230

Item 8.



HARO HOMES, LLC 

JOSH HARO 

 

10/23/2020 

 

RE: CONDITIONAL PERMIT (693 BLUDERIDGE, DRIPPING SPRINGS TX 78620) 

 

1st Portion 

1.) Connecting into existing 1” Water Line on Main House. Existing House on property has septic 

system that has been reviewed by Paul Sawyer’s Engineer and cleared to tie into existing. No 

new septic system will be needed.  

2.) This is a Mother N Law house that has been approved through the communities HOA, the new 

structure is for the homeowners Mother to reside in as a permanent home.  

3.) Impervious Coverage – Lots SQFT 82,820 X 30% = 24,846 sqft of Impervious Coverage 

4.) This structure is one bedroom but will have its own mailing address (Unit B) for 911 purposes as 

required by the HOA. This unit will not be leased or rented out to anyone, again this unit will be 

lived in permanently by the owners Mother as primary residence. 

2nd Portion 

1.) Per site Plan which has already been approved, all parking will be kept to existing driveway 

already in place for main structure – No additional parking on the street will be needed 

2.) Driveway Parking – Parking will be on existing driveway w/ additional parking extended from 

main driveway with crushed granite.  

3.) All service areas (Electrical, Water) are located in the front and south east side of main 

structure.  

4.) All utilities will be tied into existing utilities, adequate load and calculations have been 

completed and deemed adequate.  

5.) Job site will be covered w/ mulch and silt fencing to mitigate erosion control and tree 

protection.  

6.) Lighting for the new structure will match the current house structure in accordance to 

county and city codes.  

7.) There will be no new permanent fencing with this additional structure and there is no 

current permanent fencing – it is all open space.  

8.) Height Umbrella for structure – 13’10”, Heated Area 863 sqft, Garage 264 sqft, Porch 67 sqft 

(This is also on the plans that is have been provided) 

9.) The new structure is required and has already been approved by the HOA to match all 

existing exterior materials to the main house.  

10.) No traffic control will be necessary – all access to utilities and site will be limited to the 

property itself.  

231

Item 8.



 

232

Item 8.



 

 

 

 

Notice of Violation 
  

DATE ISSUED:  November 3, 2020 

 

NAME & ADDRESS OF VIOLATOR: Golias Adrianne & Brandy 

 693 Blue Ridge Dr 

 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

 

LOCATION OF SITE: 693 Blue Ridge Dr 

 Dripping Springs, TX 78620, Texas  

Property ID:  R53175 

 

NOTICE ISSUED BY: Sarah Cole 

 Building Official 

Phone: 512-858-4725  

 

 

CEASE & DESIST:   You are hereby ordered to cease and desist from the violation cited below, 

and to stop work on the above-described property until authorized by the City 

in writing to recommence and proceed with the work. 

 

VIOLATIONS: Development on land, tract, parcel, or lot within the City limits without the 

proper permits obtained from the City. 

 

VIOLATION NOTICE:  You are in violation of the City of Dripping Springs Code of Ordinances:  

Volume II, Chapter 24, Section 24.02.063 Permit Required. Volume II, 

Chapter 30, Section 3.17.2 CUP required 

 

ACTION REQUIRED:  Please submit a completed Building Permit application and Conditional 

Use Permit application to the City of Dripping Springs.  Feel free to 

contact my office at the City of Dripping Springs for assistance in this 

matter.  By cooperating with the City, you can bring your property in 

compliance with the law and avoid your case being taken to court. 

 

FAILURE TO ACT:  Failure to remedy the violations stated in this notice shall result in the 

filing of criminal charges and/or the filing of a civil lawsuit.  

  

 

233

Item 8.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

ORDINANCE No. _______ 

Conditional Use Permit 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR THE USE OF ACCESSORY DWELLING 

WITHIN THE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - LOW 

DENSITY (SF-1) ZONING DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 693 BLUE RIDGE DRIVE   UNDER EXHIBIT 

A, ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 3.17, CONDITIONAL 

USE PERMIT AS ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT “A”; AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS OF FACT; 

ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

PUBLICATION; EFFECTIVE DATE; PROPER NOTICE & 

MEETING. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to promote 

reasonable, sound, and efficient land use and development within the City of 

Dripping Springs (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has the 

authority to regulate zoning within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Dripping Springs desires to approve a conditional use permit because of 

the unique nature of this property, and the land use is compatible with the permitted 

land uses in a given zoning district only under current conditions; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has general 

authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the good government, 

peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power 

granted by law to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good government, peace 

or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of fact as 

expressly set forth herein. 

 

234

Item 8.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 2 of 4 

2. ENACTMENT 

The Conditional Use Permit is approved as presented in Exhibit “A” to this ordinance. 

3. REPEALER 

All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, herein.  

4. SEVERABILITY 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 

invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 

jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of 

this Ordinance. 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance and Conditional Use Permit shall be effective immediately upon passage and 

publication. 

6. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 

was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas 

Government Code, Chapter 551. 

PASSED & APPROVED this, the ___ day of ____________ 2020, by a vote of ___(ayes) to 

____ (nays) to ___ (abstentions) of the City Council of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

  

by:       

   Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

      

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

235

Item 8.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 3 of 4 

Attachment “A” 

 
City of Dripping Springs | Conditional Use Permit 

 
Granted to allow the land use of “Accessory Dwelling” on a property that is currently zoned Single-

Family Residential - Low Density (SF-1) District located at:   
 

693 Blue Ridge Drive, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 
Approved by the City of Dripping Springs City Council on _______ 

 
The use of an Accessory dwelling at the above-mentioned location is allowed pursuant to the following 
regulations: 

 
1. No driveway permitted off Lloyd Drive 
2. The ADU shall be connected to an approved on-site septic system prior to occupancy. 

3. Conditional Use Permits for new uses/structures shall be deemed to have expired and shall 

become null and void if construction is not completed and occupation commenced within two 

years of the date the CUP was approved. 

4. City Administrator may revoke the CUP for failure to comply with municipal regulations and the 

conditions placed on the use (City of Dripping Springs Zoning Ordinance Section 3.17.9). 

5. Conditional Use Permit is effective on _____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

236

Item 8.



City of Dripping Springs           Conditional Use Permit 

Ordinance No. XXX         Page 4 of 4 

Attachment “B” 

Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans 
 

 

 

237

Item 8.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

November 18, 2020 

Project Number:  ZA2020-0009 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 519 Old Fitzhugh Road 

Property Location:  519 Old Fitzhugh Road 

Legal Description:  
Tract 1: A0415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY, ACRES 0.84 

Tract 2: A0415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY, ACRES 2.07 

Applicant: Jon Thompson 

Property Owner: Charlie N. Haydon 

Request: 
A proposed zoning map amendment for two (2) tracts located at 519 Old Fitzhugh Rd, within 

the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. The two tracts are requesting to rezone from Single 

Family - Low Density (SF-1) to Local Retail (LR).  

Staff Recommendation: 
 Staff recommends approval of the requested Zoning Change from Single Family - Low 

Density (SF-1) to Local Retail (LR). 
 

 
238

Item 9.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting a zoning map amendment change for two (2) tracts located at 519 Old Fitzhugh Road, within 

the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. The two tracts are requesting to rezone from Single Family - Low Density (SF-

1) to Local Retail (LR). The applicant is proposing to rehabilitate the existing home and convert it to a children’s 

bookstore. The applicant is also proposing site improvements and the addition of two (2) one (1)-story buildings at the 

rear of the lot (west) for an early childhood education school (Young Children Academy.) The applicant received a 

certificate of appropriateness from the Historic Preservation Commission on October 1, 2020.  

 

A Bookstore and early childhood education school (Child day-care facility) are permitted uses within the Local Retail 

District.  

 

The zoning district Local Retail is established to provide areas for low intensity, specialized retail sales that are intended 

to service local neighborhoods, citizens, and visitors of the city. Bed-and-breakfasts are permitted within Local Retail 

Districts. General, Office, regional commercial, or commercial services uses should not be permitted. 

Permitted Uses: Those uses listed for the LR District or any less intense commercial district and Single-Family Four (SF-

4), Single-Family Five (SF-5), and Multifamily Residential (MF) uses in Appendix E (Use Charts) as “P” or “C” are 

authorized uses permitted by right or conditionally permitted uses, respectively. 

 

Early childhood education schools are typically established near single family subdivisions to allow easy access to 

surrounding family’s and neighborhoods.  

 

The two (2) tracts are within the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. When a lot is within the historic district, they shall 

comply with the Historic District Overlay as well as the Local Retail Use Chart. Certain uses could be prohibited in the 

Historic District but allowed in Local Retail. For example, Check Cashing Service, Credit Agencies, and Furniture Store 

(New and/or Used) are allowed in a Local Retail District but are not allowed within the Historic District, so this property 

would be prohibited from allowing those uses. If a use requires a CUP within Local Retail and not in the Historic District 

(or vice-versa) the CUP would be required because the City would implement whichever is the most restrictive 

requirement, this would also apply if a use is prohibited in one district but not the other.   

Development Standards and Regulations for Local Retail Zoning District and Historic District 

 Local Retail Old Fitzhugh Historic District  

Size of Lots   

Minimum Lot area Five thousand (5,000) square feet  

Minimum Lot Width Fifty feet (50').  

Minimum Lot Depth One hundred feet (100').  

Setback Requirements   

Minimum Front Yard Fifteen feet (15'); all yards adjacent to 

a street shall be considered a front 

yard. See Section 5 for any additional 

setback requirements. 

Ten feet (10’)  

Minimum Side Yard Ten feet (10'); fifteen feet (15') 

adjacent to a public street or 

residential lot. 

Five feet (5’) 

Interior Side Yards When retail uses are platted adjacent 

to other retail uses and are integrated 

into an overall shopping center site, 

creating lease spaces abutting one 

another, no side yard is required 

provided it complies with the City's 

Building Code and allows for 

connectivity. 

Five feet (5’) 

Minimum Rear Yard Ten feet (10'). Ten feet (10’) 

Adjacent to any Single-Family District 
Any neighborhood service use that is 

located adjacent to (and not across a 

 

239

Item 9.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

right-of-way from) any single-family 

zoning district shall be set back from 

the applicable residential district 

property line by thirty feet (30'). 

Maximum Lot Coverage 

Sixty percent (60%) total, including 

main buildings and accessory 

buildings. 

 

Gross Floor 

The gross floor area for each building 

shall be forty thousand square feet 

(40,000 sq. ft.) per building. 

 

Open Storage Open storage is prohibited.  

Height Regulations   

Main Building 
Maximum two (2) stories, or forty feet 

(40'), whichever is less. 

Maximum two and a half (2.5) 

stories 

Accessory Building 
Maximum one (1) story, or twenty-

five feet (25') for accessory buildings. 

 

(e)     Outside Display: Outside display of merchandise and seasonal items, such as Christmas trees and pumpkins 

shall be limited to the following: 

 

(1)     Outside display areas shall not be placed or located more than thirty feet (30') from the main building. 

 

(2)     Outside display areas shall not occupy any of the parking spaces that are required by this Chapter for the 

primary use(s) of the property, except on a temporary basis only, which is a maximum of thirty (30) days per display 

and a maximum of two (2) displays per calendar year. 

 

(3)     Outside display areas shall not pose a safety or visibility hazard, nor impede public vehicular or pedestrian 

circulation, either on-site or off-site, in any way. 

 

(4)     Outside display areas shall not extend into public right-of-way or onto adjacent property. 

 

(5)     Outside display items shall be displayed in a neat, orderly manner, and the display area shall be 

maintained in a clean, litter-free manner. 

 

(f)     On-Site Dwellings: Recreational vehicles, manufactured homes, travel trailers or motor homes may not be 

used for on-site dwelling or nonresidential purposes. 

(h)     Temporary Facilities: There shall be no permanent use of temporary facilities or buildings. 

(j)     Other Regulations: Refer to Section 5, Development Standards & Use Regulations. 

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located at 519 Old Fitzhugh Road, just north of Mercer Street.  

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

 

The property currently has an existing residential home. The front of the lot is partially developed with a lush tree canopy. 

To the rear of the Lot is open space and  slopes towards a tributary creek. At the site development stage engineering for 

drainage will have to be accounted for.  

 

Future Land Use and Zoning Designation:  

 

The City’s Future Land Use Map does not show this property on the Map. The property is within the Old Fitzhugh Road 

Historic District and shall comply with the Historic District Overlay use chart. 
240

Item 9.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 

 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below:  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North Local Retail (LR) Salon (Pink West Salon)  

Not Shown on the Future 

Land Use Map 

East Commercial Services (CS) 
Town homes, Verizon 

Communications 

South General Retail (GR) 
Vacant (Past Buffalo Gals 

Upholstery) 

West 
Planned Development District 5 

(PDD 5) 
Heritage Subdivision 

 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

2.28.1 The City declares the enactment of these regulations governing the use and development of land, buildings, and 

structures as a measure necessary to the orderly development of the community. No change shall be made in these 

regulations or in the boundaries of the zoning districts except: 

 

a. To correct any error in the regulations or map; 

 

b. To recognize changed conditions or circumstances in a particular locality; 

 

c. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business; 
241

Item 9.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

d.  To make changes in order to implement policies reflected within the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.28.2 In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the P&Z and the City Council shall consider the 

following factors: 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be appropriate 

in the immediate area concerned; 

Staff believes the proposed change from SF-1 to LR 

is an appropriate change for the area because it 

complements the adjacent commercial properties 

and the use is suitable along Old Fitzhugh Road.  

2. their relationship to the general area and the 

City as a whole; 

The use proposed will fit in with the surrounding 

area. The lot is adjacent to the Heritage subdivision 

that has a proposed 595 SF Lots. A bookstore and 

early childhood education school suits dripping 

springs community and can benefit the recent influx 

of single-family housing in the city.  

 

3. whether the proposed change is in accord with 

any existing or proposed plans for providing 

public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary 

sewers, and other utilities to the area; 

This property is not shown on any existing or 

proposed plans for public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 

area. 

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the vicinity 

and elsewhere in the City, and any special 

circumstances which may make a substantial 

part of such undeveloped land unavailable for 

development; 

This property will have no negative effect on other 

LR zoning districts. There are surrounding 

commercial properties that utilize their lot as a pre-

school. “Your Growing Child” and “Little Tigers 

Learning Center” are both 0.6 miles away.  

5. the recent rate at which land is being developed 

in the same zoning classification, particularly in 

the vicinity of the proposed change; 

Local Retail uses have been placed on adjacent lots 

and shows the transition of Old Fitzhugh Historic 

District from a residential neighborhood to local and 

general retail. The City of Dripping Springs is 

seeing an increase in development.  

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

 The use intended, pre-school, would benefit the 

surrounding residential properties. The bookstore 

will have no negative affect. The City of Dripping 

Springs does not have any bookstores and the only 

access to books can be found at the Dripping 

Springs Library.  

7. whether the proposed change treats the subject 

parcel of land in a manner which is significantly 

different from decisions made involving other, 

similarly situated parcels; and 

This property is being treated similarly to other 

Zoning changes. 

8. any other factors which will substantially affect 

the public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare. 

Staff does not see this Zoning Change affecting the 

public health, safety, morals or general welfare.  

Summary, Recommendation, and Required Action 
 

Based on the uses permitted in the Local Retail Zoning District and Historic Overlay District, the adjacent land uses, the 

opportunity to attract more individuals to the area, and the increase in sales tax, Staff recommends approval of the 

requested Zoning Change for the two (2) tracts from Single-Family Residential District - Low Density (SF-1) to 

Local Retail (LR).  
 

 

Planning and Zoning action: 
242

Item 9.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. After all 

public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall make its recommendations on the 

proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, 

and its assessment regarding how the request relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own 

motion or at the applicant's request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider 

other information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If the P&Z 

elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state the time period of the 

postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned Development 

District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a second public 

hearing thereon. 

 

Public Notification 

 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request have been received.  

 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 – Zoning Map Amendment Application 

Exhibit 2 – Proposed Ordinance & Survey 

Exhibit 3 – Certificate of Appropriateness Staff report 

Exhibit 4 – Certificate of Appropriateness  

Exhibit 5 – Photos of property, materials, and finishes 

 

Recommended Action: 
Recommend approval of the requested zoning map amendment for 519 Old Fitzhugh 

Road.  

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the zoning map amendment. 

Budget/Financial Impact: No fees have been calculated, but sales tax would be acquired. 

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Goal: Support the expansion of business and professional services 

 

243

Item 9.



244

Item 9.



245

Item 9.



246

Item 9.



247

Item 9.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0009 

Ordinance No _______   Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS ORDINANCE 

No.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS, TEXAS (“CITY”), REZONING TWO TRACTS 

OF LAND, TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 2.90 ACRES 

FROM SINGLE FAMILY - LOW DENSITY (SF-1) TO 

LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT (LR); AND PROVIDING 

FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS OF FACT; 

ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTE THE CHANGE ON THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY; PROPER 

NOTICE & MEETING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to 

promote orderly land use and development within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds to be reasonable and necessary the rezoning of the 

tracts, described more fully in Attachment “A” and totaling approximately 

2.90 acres, from Single Family - Low Density (SF-1) to Local Retail 

District (LR); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes changed conditions and circumstances in the 

particular location; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning change is compatible with the 

surrounding area and with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing required by law, a public hearing was held before 

the Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission on November 

18, 2020 to consider the proposed amendment and the Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended approval of the proposed change; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after public hearing held by the City Council on December 8, 2020, the 

City Council voted to approve the recommendation of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has 

general authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the 

good government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for 

248

Item 9.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0009 

Ordinance No _______   Page 2 of 5 

carrying out a power granted by law to the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has 

the authority to zone and rezone property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good 

government, peace or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this 

Ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of 

fact as expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 
Two tracts of land totaling approximately 2.90 acres and described more fully in 

Attachment “A” and shown in Attachment “B”, is hereby rezoned from Single Family - 

Low Density (SF-1)  to Local Retail (LR). 

 
3. REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any 

provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, 

herein. 

 
4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be 

deemed invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative 

agency with jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any 

other valid portion of this Ordinance. 

 

5. CHANGE ON ZONING MAP 

 

The City Administrator is hereby authorized to and shall promptly note the zoning change on 

the official Zoning Map of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage. 

 
7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

249

Item 9.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0009 

Ordinance No _______   Page 3 of 5 

 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 

passed was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the 

time, place and purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
PASSED & APPROVED this, the  day of  _ 2020, by a vote of 

 (ayes) to  (nays) to  (abstentions) of the City Council of 

Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

by:    

Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

250

Item 9.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0009 

Ordinance No _______  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

Attachment “A” Description of Tract 

 

BEING A 2.90 ACRES OF LAND, OUT OF THE PHILLIP A. SMITH SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NUMBER 415, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAME BEING ALL OF THAT 

CERTAIN CHARLIE N. HAYDON TRACTS 1 AND 2 RECORDED IN VOLUME 4210, 

PAGE, 204, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

251

Item 9.



 

City of Dripping Springs           ZA2020-0009 

Ordinance No _______  Page 5 of 5 

 

Attachment “B”  

2.90 Acres Survey 
 

252

Item 9.



253

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 1 of 8 

 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION MANUAL 
 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW 

 
 
Date:  September 23, 2020  
 
Project:  Young Child Academy 
  519 Old Fitzhugh Rd, Dripping Springs, TX  78620 
 
Applicant: Jon Thompson (512) 568-2184  
 
Historic District:  Old Fitzhugh Rd Historic District 
 
Base Zoning: SF-1 / HO 
 
Proposed Use: Mixed Use Rehabilitation- (Zoning Change Required- re: Conditions of Approval #1) 
 
Submittals:   Current Photograph Concept Site Plan  Exterior Elevations – Arch’l Elevs 
  Color & Materials Samples - Photomontage 
 
The following review has been conducted for the City of Dripping Springs to determine compliance and consistency 
with the City of Dripping Springs CODE OF ORDINANCES, Title 2 BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS, Chapter 24, BUILDING REGULATIONS, Article 24.07: HISTORIC PRESERVATION, Section 
24.07.014: “CRITERIA FOR ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS.” 
 
Project Type & Description:   
 
 “Adaptive Re-use” of the existing dwelling and shed, which are Contributing Resources and 

“Medium Preservation Priorities in the Old Fitzhugh Rd. Historic District, as a proposed 
Children’s Bookstore.  Also includes “New Construction” of two (1) one-story buildings behind 
the existing structures, with associated parking and site improvements, for a proposed Pre-School 
use. Existing zoning requires a Zoning Change to permit the proposed uses. 

   
Review Summary, General Findings:  “Approval in Concept With Conditions” 
  
 General Compliance Determination- Compliant Non-Compliant Incomplete  

254

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 2 of 8 

 
 
 
Staff Recommendations: “Approval in Concept with Conditions”   
 
1) Zoning Change: shall be processed in conjunction with the City of Dripping Springs Planning Dept 

and meeting Zoning Ordinance requirements in order to permit the proposed land uses. 
 
2) Necessary Permits:  Any and all required and applicable City of Dripping Springs Permits shall be 

obtained prior to beginning work (Site Development Permit; Building Permits, at a minimum). 
 
3) Approval in Concept: Historic Preservation Commission Review & Approval is for Design 

Concept and COA determination only.  City Staff shall review Site Development and Building 
Permit Submittal Documents for consistency with this COA, prior to issuance of those Permits. 

 
4) Colors - Painted Mural:  Color palette, general design, and artistic themes for proposed hand-

painted “Graphical Mural” on the existing historic resource shall be reviewed & approved by Staff 
prior to Building Permits.   

 
5) Building Materials & Finishes:   

 
a) Painted Masonry (Brick @ Existing chimney) is disallowed by City Historic Preservation Manual 

Guidelines.  Approved material cleaning and restoration techniques & methods shall be used. 
b) Native Stone Masonry only shall be used (@ Retaining Walls and Veneer).  Synthetic Stone 

products are disallowed.  Provide “basis of design” specifications on Permit Drawings. 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS:   

Historic Resource Background / Survey Information:   

 (RFC- Resource Site #14A / 14B; HHM Site No. 50)  

“#519 Old Fitzhugh Rd.  (Bungalow Style Dwelling), ca. 1935, with associated Shed outbuilding: 
Contributing Resources and a Medium Preservation Priorities.” 

“As it exists today, Old Fitzhugh Road retains buildings and landscape features that reflect the area’s 

evolution from a nineteenth century agricultural landscape to a circa 1965 residential neighborhood.” 

255

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 3 of 8 

This property retains it’s architectural integrity and represents a surviving example of a primary dwelling 

accompanied by the “mostly older domestic and agricultural outbuildings” which characterize the Pre-

WWII development of the lower portion of Old Fitzhugh Rd from roughly 1910 - 1935.   

“RFC’s medium priority ratings were assigned where alterations and additions have occurred but do not 

overwhelm the historic-age form and character of the building. For some properties ... medium priority 

ranking also reflect the presence of historic-age outbuildings and landscape elements that contribute (to) 

the historic-era setting of the Old Fitzhugh Rd. study area.” 

“RFC ... recommends that the City recognize historic-age garages, barns, and other historically intact 

ancillary structures associated with the recorded primary dwellings as historically contributing features of 

the Old Fitzhugh Road streetscape.” 

(Source: Roark Foster Consulting- Historic Resources Survey Report & Inventory: 8/5/2014) 

 

*   *   * 
 
 
Staff Review Summary:  #519 OFR – Young Child Academy 
 
“Adaptive Re-Use of Existing Dwelling & New Construction Infill Development ” 
 
The scope of work for this COA consists of two major components reflecting the fundamental 
programmatic elements of the Young Child Academy operations. 
 
The existing Dwelling and Shed facing Old Fitzhugh Rd. are to be preserved and adaptively re-used as a 
Children’s Bookstore, with outdoor seating and open-air reading area.  The approach to the historic 
resources respects preservation goals, including cleaning, maintenance, repairs, and selective renovations 
aimed at maintaining the existing form and character of these two (2) structures.  One unusual visual arts 
concept is a proposed “hand painted mural (artist TBD)” on the façade(s) of the renovated structure. OFR 
Design and Development Standards do allow a “full range of hues;” w/color palettes to be approved.”  In 
this case, due to the conceptual and creative nature of this feature, further review and secondary approval 
is recommended as the color palette, general design, and artistic themes of the mural are better defined. 
 
The second development component of the proposed concept entails introduction of two (2) new, one (1)- 
story buildings behind the existing structures, housing a Pre-School Academy.  Preservation of the large 
number of existing trees has driven a sensitive site planning scheme for these buildings, with it’s 

256

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 4 of 8 

associated drives, parking (sited to the rear) and other site improvements.   The rear of the property slopes 
gently to a natural watershed drainage.  Site engineering will need to incorporate any development-related 
drainage accommodations and water quality buffer zones.  These elements and their layout will be 
defined, engineered and reviewed by Staff during site development phase. Technical requirements will 
likely be minimized by the relatively small development footprint and the “low impact” approach. 
Conceptual Plans show the entire back half of the site left in a relatively undisturbed state, utilized only 
for Play Areas and Nature Trails for the children. 
 
The proposed design for the infill buildings respects the small-scale character, massing and rooflines of 
the OFR District, and the architectural approach is consistent with the OFR Design and Development 
Standards, including Building Footprints, Massing, Articulation, Porches, & Roof requirements. Proposed 
Materials and Finishes are almost entirely acceptable.  One noted exception (detail) is the proposed 
“Painted Brick”  (chimney), which is specifically disallowed by the City’s Historic Preservation 
Standards.  Further materials specification refinements, clarification and approvals are also required for 
“Native Stone Masonry” (Retaining Walls, Brick Veneer). 
 
At this conceptual phase, Staff generally finds the proposed development and design approach to be 
appropriate to the scale and character of the Old Fitzhugh Rd. Historic District.  The modest development 
ambition and relatively low impact of the proposed scheme shows both sensitivity and restraint.  It 
respects and preserves the property’s contributing Historic Resources. The careful planning appears to 
work well with the site’s many existing trees & drainage.  The proposed architectural design concepts are 
appropriate in character. Overall, the proposal is compatible with its surroundings and would fit-in well 
with the vision and evolution the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District.  
 
Staff Findings & Recommendations: 
 
1) Findings for “Appropriateness.” Staff finds the approach, design concept & proposal to be 

consistent with the vision, development guidelines and standards established for the Old Fitzhugh 
Rd. Historic District (see detailed Compliance Review below). 

 
2) Approval in Concept is recommended.  A zoning change is required to permit the proposed uses 

(Condition of Approval #1). Site Development and Construction Documents shall be reviewed for 
consistency with this COA prior to issuance of Permits (Conditions of Approval #2, #3). 

 
3) Secondary Review & Approval of Painted Mural is recommended (Condition of Approval #4). 
 
4) Materials Refinements, Specifications & Approval is recommended prior to issuance of Permits 

(Condition of Approval #5). 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 
 

257

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 5 of 8 

 
“Old Fitzhugh Rd. Design and Development Standards”   
 
Compliance Review / Statement:  The proposed scope of work as described in the Application and 
submitted information is found to be appropriate and consistent with applicable design and development 
standards (Comparative Summary Below), and “Approval with Conditions” is recommended. 
 
Character/Vision:  Consistent: “Protect Historic Farmstead Scale & Character; Promote Rustic 
Look/Feel, with Gathering Spaces, etc; New Construction shall be compatible with surroundings.” 
 
Design Principles:  Consistent: “New Construction shall be compatible with surroundings.”  
 
Preferred Uses:  Consistent: “Mixed Use Rehab; Residential Rehab or Infill.” 
 
Site Planning & Building Placement:  Consistent:  “Site Buildings within existing trees & landscape 
features.”  Setbacks: Front / Rear > 10’; Sides > 5’ (verify @ Site Development). 
 
Parking Arrangement:  Consistent:  “Onsite Lots @ Rear of Property.” 
 
Building Footprint / Massing / Scale:  Consistent: Proposed (new) Preschool Buildings. Building #1 = 
3,000 GSF < 5,000 max. Building #2 = 5,000 GSF < / = 5,000 max. 
 
Street Frontage / Articulation: Consistent: Proposed (new) Preschool Buildings massing meets 45’ 
max. articulation increment requirements.  
 
Porches: Consistent: Proposed (new) Preschool Buildings Canopies & Courtyard Trellises meet Porch 
requirements. 
 
Roofs:  Consistent: Proposed (new) Preschool Buildings- 30yr Composition Roofs meet requirements. 
 
Materials:  Consistent (with exceptions): New materials @ Proposed (new) Preschool Buildings (Sealed 
Stucco, Shiplap Siding) meet requirements.  Exceptions:  a) Painted Brick Chimney disallowed by 
guidelines.  b) Retaining Walls & Brick Veneer must meet “Native Stone Masonry” requirements. 
Synthetic Stone products disallowed (Conditions of Approval #5). 
 
Color Palette:  Consistent (with conditions): Basic proposed color palette meets requirements.  
Conditions: Hand-painted “Graphical Mural” requires secondary Staff review & approval of Color 
Palette, General design, and Artistic themes prior to Permits (Conditions of Approval #4). 
 
Tree Preservation:  Consistent (with conditions): “Trees to be Removed” over 8” dia. shall be replaced 
per requirements.  Conditions: Tree Preservation Plan to be reviewed & approved prior to Site 
Development Permits (Conditions of Approval #2, #3). 
 
Landscape Features:  N/A- no existing landscape features appear to be affected. 

258

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 6 of 8 

 
CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
(SECTION 24.07.014)  
 
(a)  STANDARDS & DESIGN GUIDELINES OBSERVED:  
  Project is guided by applicable Historic Preservation Standards and Design Guidelines. 
 
 See detailed summary above. Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
  
(b)  MINIMAL ALTERATION:  
 Reasonable efforts made to adapt property requiring minimal alteration of building, 

structure, object site & environment. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(c)  ORIGINAL QUALITIES PRESERVED:  
 Distinguishing original qualities or characteristics not destroyed.  Removal or alteration 

of historic material or distinguishing architectural features avoided. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(d)  PERIOD APPROPRIATENESS:  
 Buildings, structures, objects, sites recognized as products of their own time.  Alterations 

without historic basis or creating an earlier appearance discouraged. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(e)  CUMULATIVE & ACQUIRED SIGNIFICANCE:  
 Cumulative changes with acquired and contributing significance are recognized and 

respected. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 (f)  DISTINCTIVE STYLISTIC FEATURES & CRAFTSMANSHIP:  
 Distinctive stylistic and characteristic features and examples of skilled craftsmanship are 

retained where possible. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(g)  DETERIORATED ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:  
 Deteriorated architectural features repaired rather than replaced.  Necessary replacements 

reflect replaced materials.  Repair or replacement based on historical evidence not 
conjecture or material availability. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 

259

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 7 of 8 

 
(h)  NON-DAMAGING SURFACE CLEANING METHODS:  
 Surface Cleaning Methods prescribed are as gentle as possible.  No sandblasting or other 

damaging cleaning methods. (See: “Conditions of Approval #5A”- re: “Painted Brick”) 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(i)  ARCHEOLOGICAL RESOURCES PRESERVED:  
 Reasonable efforts made to protect and preserve archeological resources affected by, or 

adjacent to project. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 
(j)  CONTEMPORARY DESIGN- CONTEXT SENSITIVE & COMPATIBLE:  
 Contemporary alterations & additions do not destroy significant historical, architectural, 

or cultural material and are compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character 
of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
(k)  RETROVERSION- ESSENTIAL FORM & INTEGRITY UNIMPAIRED: 
 Future removal of new additions & alterations will leave the essential form & integrity of 

building, structure, object or site unimpaired. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(l)  PAINT COLORS- HISTORICAL BASIS: 
 Paint colors based on duplications or sustained by historical, physical or pictorial 

evidence, not conjecture.  See “Conditions of Approval #4” – Painted Graphical Mural” 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(m)  HISTORIC DISTRICT CONTEXT- OVERALL COMPATIBILITY: 
 Construction plans are compatible with surrounding buildings and environment vis. 

height, gross volume and proportion. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 
 

260

Item 9.



 

   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 
 
 
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS (SECTION 24.07.015)  
 
(g) EXPEDITED PROCESS FOR SMALL PROJECTS: ELIGIBILITY = “ Not Eligible” 
  Expedited process for small projects (cumulative costs < $10,000); must be “No” to all: 
   
 Building Footprint Expansion/Reduction? Yes No  
 Façade Alterations facing Public Street or ROW? Yes No  
 Color Scheme Modifications?  Yes No 
 Substantive/Harmful Revisions to Historic District? Yes No 

 
*   *   * 

Please contact (512) 659-5062 if you have any questions regarding this review. 
 

  
By: Keenan E. Smith, AIA 
 Historic Preservation Consultant  

261

Item 9.



262

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Site Photo Analysis

Existing Homestead

263

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Existing Homestead

264

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Existing Homestead - Contributing Structures

265

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Original House - Tree Canopy

266

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Second Clearing - Future School Site

267

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Natural Canopy - Property Line South

268

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Lower Third - Preserve Draw

269

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Material Selection
References

Some native stone examples from past projects

270

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Material Selection
References

Some native stone examples
from past projects

271

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Material Selection
References

Some native stone examples
from past projects

272

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Future Bookstore 
Vision

Graphical treatment samples for the
field (teardrop siding)
portion of the original home

273

Item 9.



danielscottturner.com

Future Bookstore 
Vision

Graphical treatment samples for the
field (teardrop siding)
portion of the original home

274

Item 9.



Materials and Finishes

Retaining Walls:
Weston Stone
3 PIECE
4 x 8 x 8
4 x 12 x 8
4 x 16 x 8

Weston Universal
4 x 12 x 8 

Brick Veneer:
Silvermine Stone 
6 inx 24 in.PIECE 
Stone Veneer 

Sealed Tinted Stucco:
SW 0052 Pearl Grey by Sherwin Williams 

8” Shiplap Rain Screen:
Shiplap Pattern

SW 0052 Pearl Grey by Sherwin Williams 

SW 6701 Moonraker by Sherwin Williams

30 Yr Composition Roof:
Color/Finish:Estate Gray:

 

danielscottturner.com

Materials and Finishes 
519 Old Fitzhugh Road

Dripping Springs, TX
275

Item 9.



Materials and Finishes

STEEL FRAME WITH
RETRACTABLE FABRIC 
AWNING:

Materials and Finishes 
519 Old Fitzhugh Road

Dripping Springs, TX
 

danielscottturner.com 276

Item 9.



City of Dripping Springs 
Development Code 
Rewrite
Planning Department

Wednesday, November 18, 2020

277

Item 10.



The Zoning Ordinance

• Determines the appropriate uses for a given location

• Limits the operation of each type of use

• Regulates the layout and form of development

 With standards such as Building height, Building 
Setbacks, Impervious Cover, etc

• Establishes processes to oversee the above

278

Item 10.



Current City 
Zoning Ordinance

• The first Zoning Ordinance that was enacted 
by the City of Dripping Springs was April 28, 
1995.

• This Zoning Ordinance was based on the 
1985 Comprehensive Plan.

• The City has done various amendments to 
the 1985 Zoning Ordinance, but never a 
complete rewrite

• Zoning has changed significantly from 1995 
to 2020 through growth and various 
amendments.

279

Item 10.



Development Code Potential 
Schedule

Benchmark 1

• Research

• Evaluate Current Ordinance

• Public Outreach: Survey

• Early Spring 2021

Benchmark 2

• Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Assessment

• Start Draft Ordinance

• Potential Open House

• Fall 2021

Benchmark 3

• Drafting

• Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council Workshops

• Spring 2022

Benchmark 4

• Adoption of Zoning Ordinance

• Late Spring of 2022 / Summer 2022

280

Item 10.



Goals for Development Code Rewrite

Reorganize all 
Planning Code of 
Ordinances into a 
Unified 
Development Code

1

User Friendliness

2

Update zoning 
districts to support 
and protect the 
distinct character 
of the City

3

Modernize and 
Customize the 
Development 
Standards

4

Streamline 
Processes

5

Setting Clear 
Expectations

6

281

Item 10.



Reorganizing 

282

Item 10.



Reorganize Planning 
Code of Ordinances into 
a Unified Development 
Code (UDC)

• A unified development code (UDC) 
will consolidate and update 
regulations and standards currently 
found in the Zoning ordinance.

• The UDC will also use more graphics 
and a common language that will 
avoid conflicts and confusing 
terminology.

• Would include every step in the 
development process prior to building 
permit including subdivision, zoning, 
signs, landscaping, and lighting.

283

Item 10.



User Friendly 

284

Item 10.



Improve User Friendliness

• Promote development standards that are easier to 
enforce and understand

• Fix critical issues in the current Zoning Ordinance 
that impede staff review and applicant compliance

• Easy to read

• Re-organize the structure of the current ordinance

• Add more charts and figures

• Compiling development regulations into one location

• Ensure terms are defined and criteria are clear

 Update definitions to stay consistent with the 
entire UDC

• Use "plain English"

285

Item 10.



Updating 

286

Item 10.



Update Zoning Districts to support and 
protect the distinct character of the City

New development should fit the 

neighborhood and the character 

of the City

Standards should ensure 

development reflects the City’s 

expectations, needs, and 

market conditions of Dripping 

Springs. 

Reduce reliance on Planned 

Development Districts 

Minimize variances, 

nonconformities

287

Item 10.



Modernize & 
Customize 

288

Item 10.



Modernize & Customize 
development standards

• Modernize and clarify the uses and the use 
regulations

 Such as Accessory Structures and Accessory 
Dwelling Units

 Add small scale and low dense multi-family 
standards

 Parking Standards

• Update Sign Regulations in response to recent 
case law

• Ensure consistency with State and Federal Law

 Change Single-Family districts to Residential 
districts (Federal law)

• Inclusion of Historic Districts as Overlays

289

Item 10.



Streamlined 
Processes

290

Item 10.



Streamlined 
Processes

• Reevaluate the review process 
for various permits

• Expanding Administrative approvals

 Such as shared parking

 Lighting, landscaping, and signage 
approvals

 Minor modifications 

291

Item 10.



Setting Expectations

292

Item 10.



Setting clear 
expectations

• Improve the Development Manual

• Explaining each step of every process, 
including informal steps

 Adding easier checklist 

• Avoid unexpected surprises to applicants 
or neighborhoods

293

Item 10.



Future 
Goals

Update Comprehensive 
Plan

Update Future Land Use 
Map

Update Applications

294

Item 10.



Development Code Committee

• The Committee members are:

 2 City Council Members

 2 Planning and Zoning Commissioners

 City Administrator/Deputy City Administrator

 City Engineer (when applicable)

 City Attorney

 Planning Department

 Various Consultants (when applicable)

• Meetings with the Committee will be once or twice 
a month to review the drafted ordinance and 
discuss direction of the Zoning Ordinance 

295

Item 10.



Questions to 
Consider

• Is the Zoning Ordinance easy to use? If not, why?

• Are there ways the Zoning Ordinance could be 
revised to be more user friendly?

• Are there comprehensive plan policies that are 
important to prioritize for code implementation?

• Are you concerned about any particular land uses in 
the City?

• Are you concerned about the quality of new 
development? The Costs of new development?

• How can zoning regulations respond to the needs of 
neighborhoods, the general public, and applicants?

• What are 3 aspects of high-quality design for new 
development or redevelopment?

• Is the process transparent? How can we better 
communicate with the public? With applicants? 

296

Item 10.



Questions/Comments

297

Item 10.



Subdivision Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

Driftwood Phase 3 ETJ 17901 RM 1826 1 lot subdivision Waiting on the County 

SUB2018-0038_Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11_FP ETJ RR12 & FM 150 Subdivision of 108 Residential lots
Turned in Plat amendment adding 
additional ROW, Comments have 
been issued.

SUB2018-0043_Treaty Oak Subdivision MP ETJ 16604 Fitzhugh Rd 1 Lot subdivision Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2018-0061 Headwaters at Barton Creek_AP ETJ 2401 E Hwy 290 Edits to metes and bounds error
Waiting on resubmittal/ everyone 
approved as of 6/25/2019

SUB2019-0017 Parten Ranch Amenity Center MP ETJ
NW Corner of Two Creeks Lane 
and Parten Ranch Pkwy

1 Lot for amenity center Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0023 Driftwood Golf & Ranch Club Phase. 1  
CP

ETJ 10450 FM 967 N Side 42 Lot Subdivision on 59.14 acres Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2019-0029 Arrowhead Ranch Ph. 4 FP CL Arrowhead Ranch Blvd 162 Lot Subdivison- 155 SF Lots In recordation process

SUB2019-0041 Headwaters Ph. 4 Sec. 6 CP ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

4 Lot subdivision Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0044 Caliterra Ph/2 Sec 7 Block F Lot 9 AP ETJ Peakside Circle amended plat waiting on resubmittal 
SUB2019-0049 Driftwood Club Core Ph. 1 CP ETJ 582 Thurman Roberts Way infrastructure for subdivision Waiting on resubmittal
SUB2019-0050 Driftwood Golf and Ranch Club Ph. 2 
FP

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way
57 SF lots, 3 Open Space, 4 Golf Course Lots, 8 ROW 
lots 

waiting on fiscal or construction 
completion 

SUB2019-0051 Driftwood Club Core Ph. 2 CP ETJ Thurman Roberts Way infrastructure for subdivision Waiting on Resubmittal
SUB2019-0060 Driftwood Phase 1 Section 2 CP ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Update to WW and Rainwater Service details Under Review

SUB2019-0062 Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 CP & FP CL Lone Peak Way 188 Single Family, Drainage, and Open Space lots
construction plans are approved, 
waiting on resubmittal for the final 
plat

SUB2020-0002 Headwaters at Barton Creek, Phase 5, 
sections 1&2 CP

ETJ
headwaters blvd and sage 
thrasher circle 

188 Residential Lots, Open Space, MUD Utilites with 
WQ and drainage improvements

Gathering signatures

SUB2020-0005 Highpointe phase II 2A-2B, lots 7&8. 
Block C AP

ETJ 118 Red River Cover Austin amended plat Gathering signatures

SUB2020-0012 Parten Ranch Phase 3 CP ETJ
1.5 Miles Southwest of Nutty 
Brown and 1826

Single Family Subdivision Under Review

SUB2018-0055 Quik Trip #4133 Addition Minor Plat CL 16460 Sawyer Ranch Rd
remaining portion of tract A of the Sawyer Springs 
Subdivision P.R. 

waiting on resubmittal 

SUB2020-0017 611 Butler Ranch Road ETJ 611 Butler Ranch Road under review (Became a variance)
SUB2020-0020 Polo Business Park East MP etj 13550 US 290 1 lot subdivision to create a legal lot under review
SUB2020-0027 Sawyer Ranch 33 CL unaddressed, R95789 3 lot subdivision near 290 and Sawyer ranch under review

SUB2020-0031 Heritage Construction Plans CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 
Development)

Construction Plans for the Heritage development under review

SUB2020-0032 Driftwood West Wholesale Water 
Connection

ETJ Fm 1826
Improvements including master vault and water meter 
vailt providing point of connection to existing 12 inch 
WL

Under Review

SUB2020-0033 Headwaters Phase 4 Sections 2-5 CP 
revision

CL
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

Proposed revision is generally to remove the proposed 
bridge and add culvert crossin. Minor adjustments to 
Fire Hydrants are also proposed

Under Review

 

298

Item 11.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2019-0006_Dog N Bone CL 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd Food Trailor and Site improvements Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0017 Storserv ETJ E Hwy 290 Self Storage facility approved w conditions
SD2019-0024 Jasons Deli CL 165 Hargraves Dr Restaurant Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0025 Merrit Hill Country Amendment CL 28725 RR 12 minor amendment Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-00026 DSWSC Filling Station CL 198 Creek Rd Gathering Signatures
SD2019-0032 Coffman Real Estate CL 27401 RR 12 Parking lot improvements Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0036 Hart Lane Homes ETJ 120 Hart Lane 3 SF homes Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0041 Driftwood Creek Temporary Kitchen ETJ 415 Thurman Roberts Way
Temporary kitchen facitilty comprised of 2 shipping 
containers

Approved with Conditions

SD2020-0006 Ghost Hill Ranch Phase 2 ETJ
31430 Ranch Road 12, Dripping 
Springs, Texas

Two Commercial Buildings Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0016 100 N Canyonwood Dr etj 100 N Canyonwood Dr 2 office buildings Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0017 Home Depot TRC cl 260 E Hwy 290 tool rental center Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0018 DSWSC Elevated Storage Tank etj Hart Lane elevated Storage tang Gathering Signatures

SD2020-0020 Revision to Texas Regional Bank cl
333 E Hwy 290 #305, Dripping 
Springs, TX 78620

The Site Development Plans have been revised for 
connectivity between the current site and future 
development

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2020-0022 Skye Headwaters Revision 2 cl 201 Headwaters Blvd. Reverting back to the originally approved project. Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0024 421 Sportsplex Correction cl 421 Sportsplex adding retaining wall waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0027 Velocity Credit Union
limited 

purpose 
district

Lot 1 Block E of Bush Ranch 
Phase 1 Revised Subdivision

Construction of an assisted living building, parking 
areas, water service line, on-site sewage facility, and 
storm water detention pond. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0023 Dripping Springs Elementary #5 Aka 
2020-1412

etj 11091 Darden Hill Road
Educational institute comprised of 5.0 acres of Lot 74 
of the Onion Creek Ranch Subdivision

under review, & issued for 
construction

SD2020-0028 DSMS Remodel AKA 2020-1495 CL 111 & 113 Tiger Lane

This project includes a new building for the relocation of 
Walnut Springs Elementary School, designed to serve 850 
students to be built south of the existing Dripping Springs 
Middle School. Additional site and interior improvements 
proposed at DSMS and are included in this scope. Sanitary 
sewer and demolition have been submitted for approval 
separately.

Under review, approved and 
issued for construction

SD2020-0029 Headwaters Phase II CL Kibo Ridge and Hwy 290 
this project includes the construction of four 3-story 
apartment buildings, associated parking and drives, 
and utilities 

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2020-0030 Howard Ranch Commercial Cl FM 150 and RR12 

one 5. 110-sf general store/fueling station, two 
10,400-sf retail stores, two 6.800-sf retail stores. One 
17.600-sf retail store, and a 10,350-sf live/work 
building to be located on 7.391 acres 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0031 ATX Drainage and Landscaping ETJ 13400 Nutty Brown Road 
construction of a landscape yard, associated 6.055 
sqft office/warehouse and parking 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0032 Big Sky Ranch Amenity Center CL Lone Peak Way amenity center for Big Sky Ranch within Phase 2 Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0033 Hill Country Senior Citizen Activity 
Center

CL
1310 US-290, DRIPPING 
SPRINGS, TX 78620

 A 3,150 sq ft building is proposed. Under Review

SD2020-0035 Harrison Hills Business Park CL
North of Whisenant, across from 
Founders Ridge (No address 
given)

Infrastructure including construction of Driveway to 12, 
water quality and detention ponds, utilites, offsite 
improvements for wastewater tie in

Waiting on Resubmittal

SD2020-0036 Arrowhead Ranch Amenity Center 
Revision

Cl Arrowhead Ranch Blvd
Proposed Site Development for future arrowhead ranch 
amenity Center

Approved w/ conditions

SD2020-0037 Sawyer Ranch Phase 2 Lot 2A Revision CL 13441 W US Hwy 290
Site Development Improvements for Lot 2A, 5.5982 
acres of the Sawywer Ranch Subdivision. Commercial 
buildings, associated parking, utilites and sidewalks

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0038 Belterra Building X2 ETJ Lot 1B--2 LTD
The project is proposing a 5,063 SF retail building with 
associated parking and utility improvements

Approved with Conditions

SD2020-0040 Forbes Tract Revision ETJ 14300 FM 1826
proposed revision would include switching from a bar 
ditch conveyance  system to an underground drainage 
system

under review

SD2020-0041 Skybridge Academy CL 26540 Ranch road 12 deck addition at rear of building for outdoor classroom Gathering Signatures
SD2020-0042 31300 RR 12 Vet Clinic ETJ 31300 RR 12 permitting an existing gravel parking lot waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0044 Founder Parking Lot Improvements CL 419 Founders Park Rd
Install an asphalt parking area consisting on 
approximately 48 parking spaces within Founders 
Memorial Park. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0045 12 South CL 4500 RR 12 
8,000 Sq ft warehouse w associated parking and 
drainage

under review

SD2020-0046 Parten Ranch Amenity Center Correction ETJ
1.5 Miles Southwest of Nutty 
Brown Rd and 1826

Under Review

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL PROJECTS

2

299

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 1.	MIN: PZC Minutes October 2020
	10.27.20 PZC Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	SUB2020-0030 Caliterra Phase 4 Sec 12 Preliminary Plat
	SUB2020-0030 - Staff Report - Caliterra
	Exhibit 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat with staff comments (SUB2020-0030)

	Item 3.	ZA2020-0008: 102 Rose Drive
	ZA2020-0008- P&Z STAFF REPORT
	Exhibit 1: Rezoning Application
	Exhibit 2: Concept Plan
	Exhibit 3 - Draft Ordinance and Survey
	Attachment B to Exhibit 3 - Survey

	Item 4.	ZA2020-0010: 1 Acre Tract RR 12
	ZA2020-0010- Staff Report
	Exhibit 1: Rezoning Application
	Exhibit 2 - Draft Ordinance and Survey
	Attachment B to Exhibit 2: Survey

	Item 5.	SUB2020-0026 Howard Ranch Replat & Vacation
	SUB2020-0026 P&Z Staff Report 11.9
	Exhibit 1 - Subdivision Application
	Exhibit 2 – Howard Ranch Commercial Recorded Plat
	Exhibit 3 – Howard Ranch Commercial Proposed Plat
	Exhibit 4 – Howard Ranch Plat Vacation Document
	Exhibit 5 – Engineer Summary Letter
	Exhibit 6 – Outstanding Comments

	Item 6.	SUB2020-0021 Parten Ranch Replat with Plat Vacation resubmittal
	SUB2020-0021 P&Z Staff Report 11.18.2020
	Exhibit 1- Subdivision Application
	Exhibit 2 – Recorded Final Plat for Parten Ranch Phase 2
	Exhibit 3 – Proposed Partial Vacation and Replat of Lots 6 and 7
	Exhibit 4 – Plat Vacation document
	Exhibit 5 – Approved Parkland Dedication

	Item 7.	CUP2020-0009: 101 Woods Loop
	CUP2020-0009 P&Z Staff Report 11.18.2020
	Exhibit 1 - Conditional Use Permit Application
	Exhibit 2 - Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans
	Exhibit 3 - Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant)
	Exhibit 4 - The Woods Subdivision
	Exhibit 5 - Letter of Support from neighbors
	Exhibit 6 - Deed
	Exhibit 7 - Impervious cover sheet
	Exhibit 8 - Notice of Violation
	Exhibit 9 - Draft ORDINANCE - CUP2020-0009

	Item 8.	CUP2020-0010: 693 Blue Ridge
	CUP2020-0010 P&Z Staff Report 11.18.2020
	Exhibit 1- Conditional Use Permit Application
	Exhibit 2- Concept Plan, Elevations, Plans
	Exhibit 3- Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant)
	Exhibit 4- Notice of Violation
	Exhibit  5 - Draft ORDINANCE - CUP2020-0009

	Item 9.	ZA2020-0009:519 Old Fitzhugh Rd
	ZA2020-0009 P&Z Staff Report 11.18.2020
	Exhibit 1 – Zoning Map Amendment Application
	Exhibit 2 - Draft Ordinance and Survey
	Attachment B for Exhibit 2: Survey
	Exhibit 3 – Certificate of Appropriateness Staff report
	Exhibit 4 – Certificate of Appropriateness
	Exhibit 5 – Photos of property, materials, and finishes

	Item 10.	Zoning Rewrite Update
	City of Dripping Springs Zoning Ordinance Rewrite PZ PP 11.12.2020

	Item 11.	November Planning Report
	Planning Dept Report 11.9.2020

	Bottom

